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Mr. Ma Kwok Keung

Mr. Wong Yat Sum

Mr. Chan Chun Sing

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Pui Shan, Bessie

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chung Koon Yan (Chairperson)
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung

Mr. Chan Chun Sing

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung

Mr. Wong Yat Sum

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (Chairperson)
Mr. Chung Koon Yan
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED KJEZEREBERAF

EEE
HITES
KWL ()
6 53 48 2+

HRAELEE
I8 fm 55 &

BAYFHTES

RBRFE
BERNSLE
FHEER L
'E-LEAE
BRIR 2 & 4

NRWE

B i 38 22 £

BEREES®

BERLLE(XE)
RBREE
FHEREE
BRIR 2 5L &

REZEES

REGZ L (EE)
RBRFE
FERLE
'E-LEAE

FWEES

RERFEE(XE)
BERNSLE
MeFHE R £



AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

(for the purpose of the Listing Rules)
Madam Ng Sing Mui
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suite 2702, 27th Floor
Tower 2, Nina Tower
No. 8 Yeung Uk Road
Tsuen Wan

New Territories
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

6812

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.winsongrouphk.com

Corporate Information

ANCIE-¢

EEN R
(3L HRAITE)

REHFLL
MEFH e X £

A EE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

ERAMRETELXME

e
¥ 5

5= B8
s E 52 5R
2712702 %

B 4D 18 5%

6812

NGIE D

www.winsongrouphk.com

Annual Report 2020 2020%F &£



Corporate Information

RAEEH

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman

KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
16th Floor, The Centre

99 Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

United Overseas Bank Limited
23/F, 3 Garden Road
Central, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
25/F, Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Xk|EZEREBERA T

FEHEROVEFECAE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

EEROBEERTRE

HEZEHEZTZAERAQ T
BB

2R KNER183%

& AR 541E

FEEREAT

ERBIT(EBBRAA
EBEPR

2/ RKEF 9%

FIRA 161

RERTARAA]

EEBR
TEEB35% 2318

7% 4]

BV ERERSAMEBMERAA

HEDEED
BB
FHEPRI115
K ZH 251



LEGAL ADVISERS TO THE COMPANY

As to Hong Kong Law
Cheung & Choy
Suites 3804-05, 38/F
Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

As to Cayman Islands Law
Conyers Dill & Pearman
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman

KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Corporate Information

ANCIE-¢

KRB EEE™

IR & B 1#
SRt B GURED =S PT
B

B E 185
FIRES
381£3804-05 %

BRFS5HE5E
Conyers Dill & Pearman
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman
KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Annual Report 2020 20205 &£

5



mmmm Financial Highlights

6

MBREE

Year ended 31 March
BZESAMBLEE

Percentage

2020 2019 Change

2020 F 20194 BOLLEH
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(BEEB®BT) (BE8A8T)

Revenue Wz 569.6 5873 6.0%

Gross Profit EF 83.7 79.6 5.2%

Profit for the year F A m A 20.7 20.8 -0.5%
As at As at

31 March 31 March Percentage

2020 2019 Change
120205 20194

3A31H 3A31H BOLLE#

(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(BEE®BT) (BE&BL)

Total Assets BEE 207.7 191.7 8.3%

Total Equity W B RE 134.9 124.2 8.6%

Key Financial Ratios FEBBKEE

Gross profit margin E = 14.7% 14.8%
Net profit margin 4R & 3.6% 3.9%
Return on equity 1% 7K B = 2 15.3% 16.8%
Return on total assets A B K 10.0% 10.9%
Dividend payout ratio K Bt & N/ATE A 48.2%
Interest coverage ratio T BB = 71.9 times{Z 55.0 timesf
Current ratio BN =R 2.9 times{% 2.8 timesf&
Quick ratio R B H FR 2.9 timesfZ 2.8 timesfgZ
Gearing ratio EAREBELX 0.1 timesfZ 0.1 timesf&

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED KJEZEREBERAF



Chairperson’s Statement =

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020 (“FY2020”).

The FY2020 has been a year full of challenges, most notably rising social
tensions, disturbance of public transportation from railway network to
airport, and the outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease (“COVID-19”),
all of which have, to certain extent, caused changes to the lifestyle of
local residents and visitors and business environment. Despite all the
changes and uncertainties, the Group has been able to accommodate
and fulfil the requirement and request of our customers while maintaining
service quality. In the environmental hygiene and related services
business segment, the Group achieved a tender success rate and
contract renewal rate of approximately 19.7% and 51.2% respectively for
the FY2020, which no doubt is a testimonial of customers’ satisfaction
with the Group’s quality of service, and the credits go to our staff team’s
professional dedication and our customers’ trust in the “Winson”
reputation.

In the airline catering support services business segment, albeit the
Group’s effort to uphold its service and quality, the operating environment
of the local airline business has been plagued by both local and global
unfavourable factors since mid 2019; with the intensified spreading of
COVID-19 since early 2020, passenger air traffic in Hong Kong has
gradually reduced to negligible. By mutual agreement with our customer,
the Group has temporarily suspended its airline catering support services
operation since March 2020. Given this business segment has only
contributed to a minor portion of the Group’s revenue and profit
historically, we do not expect the temporary suspension to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial stability and we will take this
chance to conserve and consolidate our resources and to focus on our
core business and exploring other development opportunities.
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(;hair erson’s Statement
FE®RE

According to government statistics, Hong Kong’s economic performance
has recorded a contraction of 8.9% in the first quarter of 2020 as
compared to the same period in 2019, as broad spectrum of industries
fall victims to the COVID-19 outbreak and the consequential disease
control measures. But, cliché as it may be, opportunity lies where there
are risks. Environmental hygiene services operators with less financial
support or adaptability may encounter difficulties in coping with the
current harsh operating environment and economic conditions, and the
market may undergo a stage of consolidation and phasing out of the
weak; but fundamentally, the demand for environmental hygiene and
related services is expected to remain positive, as property owners,
public transit operators and the public in general is becoming more aware
of hygiene measures and services. Meanwhile, the Group will leverage on
its reputation and financial strength to uphold its brand image and market
position, and will also stay vigilant of market opportunities for potential
growth and horizontal development.

| take this opportunity to share with everyone that the Company has
successfully transferred the listing of its shares from GEM to the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) in June 2020, which is a particularly remarkable achievement
amidst all the turmoils in FY2020. | would like to express my gratitude for
the unwavering dedication and support from the Group’s management,
staff members, customers and other business partners over the years,
which enable the Group to attain the status that it has today. The Group
will work its best to deliver quality customer services and financial results
for the interest of all our stakeholders.

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 19 June 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis mmm

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group maintained its business growth trend in the FY2020 and
recorded a total revenue of approximately HK$569.6 million, representing
an increase of approximately HK$32.2 million or 6.0% from the year
ended 31 March 2019 (“FY2019”). Revenue growth is mainly attributable
to favourable performance in the environmental hygiene and related
services segment, which brought in revenue of approximately HK$536.5
million in the FY2020, representing a rise of approximately 7.6% from the
FY2019, but is partly offset by a drop in revenue from the airline catering
support services segment.

Environmental Hygiene and Related Services

During the FY2020, the Group entered into 17 new contracts and 65
renewal of contracts for environmental hygiene and related services with
estimated total value of approximately HK$20.1 million and HK$150.8
million respectively. The Group’s tender success rate and contract
renewal rate for the FY2020 in the environmental hygiene and related
services segment was approximately 19.7% and 51.2% respectively.
Furthermore, there has been increasing demand for premium hygiene
and related services, such as mist disinfection treatment for office
premises from existing and new customers. As a result, revenue from this
segment grew by approximately 7.6% to approximately HK$536.5 million
(FY2019: HK$498.8 million) and its contribution to the Group’s total
revenue increased to approximately 94.2% (FY2019: 92.8%) for the
FY2020. As at 31 March 2020, the total estimated value of contracts on
hand was approximately HK$1.04 billion, out of which approximately
HK$352.2 million was on-going contracts.

Owing to the upward adjustment to the statutory minimum wage in Hong
Kong effective from May 2019 and social conflict events, the Group has
experienced a higher-than-expected labour turnover rate and pressure
on wage increment during FY2020. Fortunately, as a result of negotiation
efforts on contract renewal and increased demand for premium hygiene
services, gross profit margin for FY2020 remained stable at approximately
15.0% as compared to approximately 15.1% for the FY2019.

BEEENWE T

E 3 JC)-E

N £ B R 2020 81 AF 4 45 TS 18 K 8 2 I 8%
BRI EE L HERER
20193 A31H IEF E ([20198F & 1) & hn 49
R2EEABTH60% WniERFEFR
RERBHEERBERBE S IR T RIR
R 20208 FE &5 K #9536.5 8 & /8 jr W 2k © 48
B 201981 &F E F 497.6% © 1B 30 Wit %=
BRI ERG U S TEATEE

BREHERHEBRRE

R20208 F - AEBEHRIRIEFHE R ABER
BRI ST A N RERI65M & 4 fhat
BEED BN AB201H5ES TR15088 8
FEIT o 120208 & - AEBIRE A A K
BREDHOREXNDERENENE D
B A #I19.7% N 51.2% Woh BEEFL K
TR P EEE A RABERS RS ST E
B MEBEAGETEBRSEE -
A it - 72202081 F ¢ bt o FP A9 M == 1 K 4D
7.6% % 49536.5 8 & B T (201987 4 : 498.8
BEBL) EHAEBRRNENERIES
#994.2% (201981 £F : 92.8%) ° R 202043 A
1B FHANHEREBNB104EH
Jo EHRAG2 2B BB L AKEITREN -

HREBEZEREIEB2019F5H E# &
HtEHREEHEE KNS ER20208 F 5
BT RAESRESR TEEIELED
Bh-fE BREENAHFTENS IR
MIZHEEHERBHFE LI - 202084
FHEFRBEAELH15.0%  M20198 F 4
A15.1% ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DM

Airline Catering Support Services

The performance of airline catering support services experienced a
decline during the FY2020; due to local social tension and global
economic and political issues, passenger air traffic in Hong Kong was in
decline since mid 2019. The COVID-19 outbreak since early 2020 made
the airline industry even more challenging and the Group’s airline catering
support services has been temporarily suspended since March 2020.
Amidst such adverse factors, revenue from this business segment
reduced to approximately HK$33.1 million, which represents
approximately 5.8% of the Group’s total revenue for FY2020 only. Given
this business segment has historically been a relatively minor contributor
to the Group’s revenue and profit, we do not expect the temporary
operation suspension to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial stability. Nonetheless, we maintain contact with our customers
regularly to devise a resumption plan as soon as possible for the mutual
benefits.

OUTLOOK

The COVID-19 outbreak since early 2020 has ravaged consumer
sentiment and business activities. Albeit the nature of the environmental
hygiene and related services may render it less susceptible to the effect
of disease outbreak, the Group is paying close attention to development
of the COVID-19 situation and market condition in general for possible
impacts on the Group’s operation. Meanwhile, given the temporary
suspension of the airline catering support services operation, the Group
will focus on developing its environmental hygiene and related services
business. In particular, the Group will aim at expanding its service
offerings to existing customers to enhance revenue base and operational
efficiency. We will also focus marketing effort on customers and potential
customer who are key market players for greater growth potential in the
long term. Furthermore, we shall stay vigilant of opportunities for gaining
of market share and potential horizontal development. Overall, despite
the present less than favourable market condition, the general business
outlook of the Group remains positive in the medium to long term.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED XK|EEREBERAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the FY2020, total revenue was approximately HK$569.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately 6.0% (2019: approximately
HK$537.3 million). The increase in revenue was due to acquisition of
several new contracts for environmental hygiene and related services
during FY2020 and adjustment on service charge for existing contracts
during renewal. There was a decrease in revenue from airline catering
support services due to the decrease in flight passenger volume as a
result of local social tension and global economic and political issues as
well as the outbreak of COVID-19.

The following is an analysis of Group’s revenue by segment:

BEEENWRE D

1 % [0 B8

i &=

R20208F F #) B W = 4 /569.6 8 8 A
JC(20194F : 495373 H B B L) HIE LY
6.0% ° U 2= 3 A0 T5 F1 72 2020 BF 4 A fE B 45
ZHRETERBERBFTGAREER
BEAHRAERBE MEBRIERY
WL TTHERE L E REER . 2
£ T B A S R LA B COVID-19 ) 18 3% 38 2
MR EHERD -

AEBRDHME D WS T

2020 2019
2020 5 20194F
HK$’000 HK$'000 %
FET FHET
Environmental hygiene and IREEAERBBRS
related services 536,466 94.2 498,771 92.8
Airline catering support services fifi 25 & 88 X & IR 1% 33,093 5.8 38,553 7.2
Total 5t 569,559 100.0 537,324 100.0

For the FY2020, revenue from environmental hygiene and related services
and airline catering support services amounted to approximately
HK$536.5 million (FY2019: approximately HK$498.8 million), and
approximately HK$33.1 million (FY2019: approximately HK$38.6 million)
respectively, representing approximately 94.2% and 5.8% of total
revenue for the FY2020 (FY2019: approximately 92.8% and 7.2% of total
revenue). Revenue from environmental hygiene and related services and
airline catering support services increased by approximately 7.6% and
decreased by approximately 14.2% respectively as compared with the
FY2019.

202081 F - R BIREHE REE RS X
MEBERIZERS 2 W= B4 &536.5
B BB (20198 F : £9498.8B & B L) &
#3318 & 7T (201981 5 : 4386 F & 6
TC) #9165 2020 B F 42 UK 35 A 94.2% K 5.8%
(201981 4F : #){h N 2= #992.8% K 7.2%) °
REREGEREERBEMEZERIE
BR 7% 2 Wz 8201981 F 2 Bl 12 M 497.6% K
B 4914.2% »

Annual Report 2020 2020%F &£

11



12

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DM

Cost of Services

For the FY2020 and FY2019, the cost of services of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$485.9 million and HK$457.8 million respectively,
representing approximately 85.3% and 85.2% of the Group’s revenue for
the corresponding years. The cost of services of the Group comprised
direct wages, consumables and sub-contracting fees.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit slightly increased from approximately HK$79.6 million for
the FY2019 to approximately HK$83.7 million for the FY2020. The gross
profit margin slightly decreased from approximately 14.8% for the FY
2019 to approximately 14.7% for the FY2020. The following table sets
forth breakdown of gross profit and gross profit margin by segment.

Year ended 31 March 2020
B Z2020F3A31 B ILFE EERlekcyschl=Nls ]

AR 3% B AN

202087 F K 20198 F » AN & & A9 AR 75 X
KD R4 B485.98 B T M 457.8H & B
T EAEEBESFE RIS H85.3% K
852%  c REERBXABRTFEEERETLSE &
MhkoBER-

ENRERN X

EFBE20198 F R 479.6 B & /8 T & M1
S E 202081 F B 4983.7 8 & 8 7T ° E F X
B 201984 & #) #714.8% L 8 4> 2= 2020 B
FRH14.7% > TREHN IR D BEHHEF
N EF KP4 -

Year ended 31 March 2019

Gross Profit Gross Profit

Gross Profit Margin Gross Profit Margin
e ER % = F = Fil &
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
THET T T

Environmental hygiene and IREGERBEBRS
related services 80,440 15.0 75,518 15.1
Airline catering support services fifi Z= & 88 > 5 IR % 3,265 9.9 4,040 10.5
Total HBEt 83,705 14.7 79,555 14.8

The gross profit of environmental hygiene and related services slightly
increased by approximately 6.5% from approximately HK$75.5 million for
the FY2019 to approximately HK$80.4 million for the FY2020. The gross
profit margin slightly decreased from approximately 15.1% for FY2019 to
approximately 15.0% for FY2020.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Xk|EZEREBERA T

IRBE A R RF EF 820198 F &4
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The gross profit of airline catering support services decreased by
approximately 19.2% from approximately HK$4.0 million for the FY2019
to approximately HK$3.3 million for the FY2020. The mechanization of
certain job types by customer reduced the required manpower to
perform the job and the global outbreak of the COVID-19 further reduce
demand for airline catering support services. The decrease in gross profit
margin of airline catering support services for the FY2020 was mainly due
to severance payment upon suspension of service required by customer
in March 2020.

General Operating Expenses

The general operating expenses increased by approximately HK$4.0
million, representing an increase of approximately 7.4% to approximately
HK$57.8 million for the FY2020 as compared with that for the FY2019
which was mainly attributable to increase of salaries expenses because
of the payment of discretionary year-end bonus in the FY2020.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by approximately 23.4% from
approximately HK$0.5 million for the FY2019 to approximately HK$0.4
million for the FY2020 as the Group required less external financing for
working capital requirement.

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the
Year Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group’s profit and total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the Company for each of the FY2020 and FY2019 were
approximately HK$20.7 million and HK$20.8 million respectively,
representing of approximately 3.6% and 3.9% of the respective year’s
total revenue.

Capital Expenditure

During the FY2020, the Group’s capital expenditure which mainly
included additions in equipment and motor vehicle amounted to
approximately HK$1.1 million (FY2019: HK$3.9 million). These capital
expenditures were mainly financed by fund generated from operating
activities.

BEEENWRE D

MEZRIZERBE EF 20198 F 84
408 BB TR A 4919.2% Z 2020 81 F #) 4
SBAEEARA T - BFREEIENEWMAR
DT HITZEBIERTHANDREIRKE R
COVID-193 — 2 ik 4 i 22 B R & AR 75 1Y
MIH T K R2020 FMEBE R EIRT
FEMERDTIEZHNEFPR2020F3 A 2
KEERBmMZTERE -

—REERX

— MR AR B ST E20198 E 1 N 44.0F B
BTk 497.4% £ 20208 F B 49578 H &8
TT o b Th E B R R 202081 F X N B E R
A EREF SR ZEM-

REBHNREKAB 2019 FNLH05H S
7 TT R D #728.4% FE 20208 FHI 404 H B
Bk THERAEERFTERDNINEE
UM ETEEEST K-

ARBEBABEFARNRE
TH Wh 2% 48 3R

R20208f & K20198F F - R R A #HH A
EEAEERANE2AWRSEBIBNAE
207EEBILN208FEB L HEEFE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EERENWR DM

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s total current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$173.0 million (81 March 2019:
HK$155.7 million) and HK$59.0 million (31 March 2019: HK$55.8 million)
respectively, while the current ratio was approximately 2.9 times (31
March 2019: approximately 2.8 times).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$207.7 million which were financed by total liabilities and total equity
of approximately HK$72.8 million and HK$134.9 million respectively. As
at 31 March 2020, the Group had cash and bank balance of
approximately HK$40.5 million (31 March 2019: approximately HK$33.8
million).

The Group gearing ratio was 0.1 times as at 31 March 2020 (31 March
2019: 0.1 times), which was calculated based on the total bank
borrowings over total equity of the Group.

There was no change to the Company’s capital structure during the
FY2020. As at 31 March 2020, the issued share capital of the Company
was HK$6,000,000 divided into 600,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each (the
“Shares”).

EMPLOYEES, TRAINING AND
REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 1,967 (31 March 2019: 2,120)
employees. The Group enters into separate employment contracts with
each of the Group’s employees in accordance with the applicable
employment laws in Hong Kong. The remuneration package includes
basic salary, bonuses and other cash allowances or subsidies. The
Group conducts annual review on salary, bonuses and promotions based
on the performance of each employee. The total staff costs and related
expenses (including directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 31 March
2020 were approximately HK$326.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately 5.5% or approximately HK$17.2 million as compared with
approximately HK$309.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2019.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED KIEIZERREFHEER A A

NBEL MBEERRER
R

R2020F3H31H  AEERBEEL KD
BERED X A173.08 &5 7t (2019F
3HA31H : 155,78 BB L) k59.08 BB T
<2019¢3H31 H:5588&8mL) Mk

R4 52.91% (20193 A31H : #)2.81%) o

R2020F3A3IH AREBEREELXN B
20T TEBEAIL MABAERABNLAEZLES
B #BT28E BB L K1349B BB T N
20203 A31H  A&EB AR & RIRITHE &

44055 & 7B £ (201943 A31 H : #)33.8
AEBIT)

R2020F3 H31H  AEEMEABEL X
A01fZ (20194 3HA31H : 0.11%)  Z & X
\1Ett?B$ETF$E.fETT1ﬁ$}K B 58 B A
et E

EAzozoﬁﬁi KARMERNEREL EHEAE

""""" #E) o N2020F3 A31H KA AWM 3T
% ZX &6,000,0007%8 JT 9 A 600,000,000 &
FRmEOIE TR, ([AR#H]) -

B - 359I & 3 M BUR

R2020F3 A31H » NE B H 1,967 % (2019
F£3H31H :2,120%)EE - KEBRIESE
BEBREBEINEAEESEZEED R J T

TEBEAD -FHMETEBEELRFE -
&Eﬁﬁfﬁﬁiﬁﬁ‘kﬁﬁﬁ $EI$E'<TJ§%1E
ENRBUFE HANBEAETFER

& o %ti202o¢3ﬁ S1AIEFEMHE KA
MEBERYBE(BEESME) 4 53266
BEAT BEHZE2019E3A31H IEEEW
#3094 BA LI INAS5%K L1728 B
BT ©



Management Discussion and Analysis

Apart from basic remuneration, share options have been granted under
the pre-IPO share option scheme to recognise the contribution to the
Group by an executive Director and certain employees of the members of
the Group. Further share options may be granted under share option
scheme to attract and retain the best available personnel, provide
additional incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), as well as
promote the success of the business of the Group.

In order to provide quality services to customers, the Group provides
ongoing training regularly to relevant staff across different departments
with topics including but not limited to information technology,
environmental protection, ISO training, safety training as well as trainings
for supervisory roles, etc. Such trainings are either provided internally or
by external parties.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since the Group generated most of the revenue and incurred most of the
costs in Hong Kong dollars for the year ended 31 March 2020, there was
no significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation and the Group did
not maintain any hedging policy against foreign exchange risk. The
management will consider hedging significant currency exposure should
the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The contingent liabilities of the Group is the exposure of the fine from the
actual use of the leasehold land and buildings (the “Property”) does not
comply with the permitted use and breach of section 25(1) of the
Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for failure
to notify the Buildings Department regarding the change of land use.

Although the Group changed the use of the Property from head office to
warehouse in December 2017, and the use of the Property as warehouse
is complied with the permitted use, the prosecution under the provisions
of the Buildings Ordinance may be commenced within 12 months of the
same being discovered by or coming to the notice of the Buildings
Department. As such, as at 31 March 2019 and 2020, pursuant to
section 40(2) of the Buildings Ordinance, the maximum exposure of the
fine as a result of the aforesaid matter is approximately HK$0.1 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DM

CHARGE OVER GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings of carrying value of
approximately HK$27.2 million as at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019:
approximately HK$28.2 million) were pledged to secure the bank loans.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
March 2020.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not have any significant investment held as at 31 March
2020.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 February
2017 (the “Prospectus”), the Group did not have other plans for material
investments or capital assets as of 31 March 2020.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®E DM

FREREAZR

Based on the offer price of HK$0.42 per share, the net proceeds from 1R EEERRM042B Tt E - R % E
the share offer, after deducting listing related expenses, amounted to FFE X IEF B (KLMNMB FmMHEBHRA X %)L
approximately HK$40.1 million. The Group has utilised and will continue  E401 B BA T - N E BB B B R 15 % &
to utilise such net proceeds from the share offer for the purposes set out X FE IR SR N[ EF B ZRR i L A8 B A
in the section headed “Statement of Business Objectives and Use of & |—fifiEi 2z AE B A AR D EE 5
Proceeds” in the Prospectus. As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s planned  FHIE F %8 - A2020E3 A31H » NEEF R E

application and actual utilisation of the net proceeds is set out below:

Use of proceeds

Percentage of

REFEZAERERERPBIBRET

FURNE
Expected
Unutilised net timeline for
Actual usage proceeds as the use of
total net Planned up to 31 at 31 March unutilised
proceeds applications March 2020 2020 net proceeds

B Z20204F #2020 F
3A31BZ 3A31H2 EBAXRHA
IHRFERE ERHA RBA FERERE
FHEEIL STERAR BR FMERERE NWHEHAREXR

HKS$ in million  HK$ in milion  HK$ in million
BEATT BEATT BEATT

For strengthening the Group’s  hns& 7k & B &9 7] A
available financial resources B 1§ &R LA 518
to finance cash flow BEEHNETRE
mismatch under the tender MR E S
contracts

For increasing the market BBMEAEE SR
penetration by strengthen B ERS TS
the promotion of the HEX
Group’s brand

For strengthening the REEBBIERE
established position in the RIS EANWBES
environmental services Az
industry in Hong Kong

For enhancing the information  /113& & 5 RBHE: & 4%
technology system to AR 2 R R

45.0% 18.1 18.1 = N/A

7.0% 2.8 2.1 0.7 By/before

31 March 2021
M20214
3A31Bs Al

19.0% 7.6 7.6 = N/A

TEH

19.0% 7.6 2.7 4.9 By/before

31 March 2021

strengthen operational kIREE = 720214
efficiency and service 3A31Bs Al
qualities
For the use as general working FA{EZAN & B — /& 10.0% 4.0 4.0 — N/A
capital of the Group LEES TiE A
Total wEt 401 34.5 5.6
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DM

As at 31 March 2020, the unutilised net proceeds amounted to
approximately HK$5.6 million, which was intended to be utilised for (i)
enhancing the information technology system to strengthen operational
efficiency and service qualities as to approximately HK$4.9 million; and (i)
increasing the market penetration by strengthen the promotion of the
Group’s brand as to approximately HK$0.7 million.

While the Group relocated its head office on 27 December 2017, the
Group’s IT department focused on setting up the new office and
installation of new hardware and software. Furthermore, the IT
department also carried out migration of computers data, installation of
virus and ransomwares protection software and parallel backup system
to office devices in new office. Hence, the upgrade of the Group’s
information technology system was delayed.

The Group plans to apply the unutilised net proceeds by (i) approximately
HK$1.8 million on existing server improvement and addition of IT
equipment at head office, remote sever site and worksites; and (i)
approximately HK$3.1 million mainly for procuring cloud storage,
Share Point development, VR training and addition of IT equipment at
head office and worksites by/before the year ending 31 March 2021.

For the unutilised net proceeds for the promotion of the Group’s brand,
the Groups plans to allocate approximately HK$0.7 million for (i) social
media management; and (i) distribution of marketing materials by/before
the year ending 31 March 2021, respectively.

As at 31 March 2020, the unutilised net proceeds of approximately
HK$5.6 million have been placed as interest bearing deposits with a
licensed bank in Hong Kong and are intended to be applied in a manner
consistent with the proposed allocations in the Prospectus.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Transfer of Listing

The Company has successfully transferred the listing of its Shares from
GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 11 June 2020 (the
“Transfer of Listing”).
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Corporate Governance Report s

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognise the importance of good corporate governance in
management and internal procedures so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (‘CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) or
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)* as its own code of corporate governance.

Save for the deviation of code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as
described in the paragraph headed “Chairperson and Chief Executive
Officer” below, the Board considers that, the Company has complied, to
the extent applicable and permissible, with the code provisions as set out
in the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2020 and the Directors
will use their best endeavours to procure the Company to comply with
the CG Code and make disclosure of deviation from such code in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules or the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”)* as its code of conduct for
securities transactions by Directors. The Directors are reminded of their
obligations under the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules or the Model Code* on a regular basis.
The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors, and all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules during the
year ended 31 March 2020.
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Corporate Governance Report
TtEERBSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, gives
direction and make decisions on the Group’s strategies, policies,
business plan and financial budget and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. In addition, to oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). The Board has
delegated to the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. Further details of the Board committees
are set out in this report.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine members,
consisting of four executive Directors, and five independent non-
executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen

Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung

Mr. Wong Yat Sum

Mr. Chan Chun Sing

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this annual
report, there was no change in the composition of the Board.

Each Director has relevant experience, competence and skills appropriate
to the business requirements of the Company. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 60 to 65 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” that Madam Ng Sing Mui is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei
and Mr. Sze Wai Lun, and Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the sister of Mr. Sze Wai
Lun, the Board members do not have any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among themselves.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules or Rule 3.10(1) of the
Listing Rules*, every board of directors of a listed issuer must include at
least three independent non-executive directors. In addition, pursuant to
Rules 5.05A and 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules or Rules 3.10A and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules*, every listed issuer is required to have such
number of independent non-executive directors representing at least
one-third of the board, and at least one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Board consisted of five independent non-executive
Directors during the year ended 31 March 2020, with three independent
non-executive Directors possessing appropriate professional
quallifications or accounting or related financial management expertise,
and the number of independent non-executive Directors represents more
than one-half of the Board. There is a strong independent element in the
Board to provide independent judgement.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has renewed the letter of appointment with each of the
independent non-executive Directors for a term of two years commencing
on 16 March 2020 unless terminated by not less than three months prior
written notice served by either party on the other or otherwise in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment. Each of such
appointments is subject to the rotation and retirement provisions in the
articles of association of the Company.

CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the responsibilities
between the chairperson and chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual.
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TEERBE

Up to the date of this report, the Company has not appointed a chief
executive officer and the role and functions of chief executive officer have
been performed by all the executive Directors, including Madam Ng Sing
Mui, the chairperson of the Company (the “Chairperson”) and an
executive Director, collectively. The Board considered that this has the
advantages of allowing contributions from all executive Directors with
different expertise and will review the current situation from time to time
and shall make necessary arrangements when the Board considers
appropriate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted on 13 March 2017 a board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Company continuously seeks to enhance the
effectiveness of its Board by maintaining the highest standards of
corporate governance and recognizing and embracing the benefits of
diversity in the boardroom. The Company sees diversity as a wide
concept and believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including skills, regional
and industry experience, cultural and educational background, race, age,
gender and other qualities etc. In forming its perspectives on diversity,
the Company will also take into account factors based on its own
business model and specific needs and disclose the rationale for the
factors it uses for such purpose from time to time. The Board will give
adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy when it identifies
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board and will
review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis and make such
revisions as may be required to ensure its continuing effectiveness.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board intends to hold Board meetings regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than 14 days
will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an
opportunity to attend and propose matters to be discussed in the
meeting agenda.

For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice will
generally be given. The agenda and accompanying documents are
dispatched to the Directors or Board committee members at least 3 days
before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the
documents and be adequately prepared for the meetings.
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When Directors or Board committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the Chairperson prior to the
meeting. Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings
will be recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters considered by
the Board and the Board committee and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting
is held.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board held 8 Board meetings
and passed resolutions by way of written resolutions. The attendance
record of each Directors is set out in the table on page 28 of this annual
report.

GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 March 2020, 1 general meeting of the
Company, being the 2019 annual general meeting held on 8 August
2019 (the “2019 AGM”), was held. The attendance record of each
Directors is set out in the table on page 28 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 21 February 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chung Koon Yan, Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, Mr. Ma
Kwok Keung and Mr. Chan Chun Sing with Mr. Chung Koon Yan being
the chairperson of the Audit Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review, in draft form, the annual report and accounts, interim report and,
if prepared for publication, quarterly reports and to provide advice and
comments to the Board. In this regard, members of the Audit Committee
will liaise with the Board, the senior management and auditors. The Audit
Committee will also consider any significant or unusual items that are, or
may need to be, reflected in such reports and accounts and give
consideration to any matters that have been raised by the accounting
staff, compliance officer or auditors. Members of the Audit Committee
are also responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management systems.
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The corporate governance functions are also performed by the Audit
Committee. The corporate governance functions are to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to
comply with the CG Code and make recommendations to the Board, to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors, and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2020. The attendance record of each members of the Audit Committee
at the above meetings is set out in the table on page 28 of this annual
report. In addition, the Audit Committee also dealt with matter by way of
circulation of written resolutions during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Audit Committee had
performed the following work:

— reviewed and made recommendation to the Board the engagement
of the Company’s auditor in respect of the audit of financial
statements of the Group and perform agree-upon procedures for
the interim and quarterly results announcements;

— discussed with the Company’s auditor the audit planning;

—  reviewed the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements and
the related results announcement, documents and other matters or
issues raised by the Company’s auditor and made recommendation
to the Board the re-appointment of the Company’s auditor;

— reviewed and made recommendation to the Board the engagement
of external consultants in respect of the provision of enterprise risk
assessment service and internal control review service;

— discussed and confirmed with the management the effectiveness of
the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control systems, reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems and made recommendation to the Board;
and

— reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code during the
year ended 31 March 2019 and corporate governance related
matters.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 and is of the opinion that
such consolidated financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules, other applicable legal
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr. Chung Koon Yan
and one executive Director, namely Ms. Sze Tan Nei with Mr. Yuen Ching
Bor Stephen being the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policies
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and to set up a formal and transparent procedure for
determination of such remuneration policies.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach under code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make recommendations to the
Board on remuneration packages of the Directors and the members of
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended 31
March 2020. The attendance record of each members of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the table on page 28 of this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Remuneration Committee
performed the following work:

— discussed and reviewed the existing policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management; and

— made recommendations to the Board on discretionary bonus
offered to the executive Directors and senior management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Madam Ng Sing Mui and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, Mr. Ma Kwok Keung and Mr. Wong
Yat Sum with Madam Ng Sing Mui being the chairperson of the
Nomination Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. In assessing the Board
composition, the Nomination Committee will take into account various
aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, as
well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered necessary),
including periodical review of such plans. The appointment of a new
Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when
it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for decision by
the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well
as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in
particular, are set out as follows:

(@  participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of conducts;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
(c) serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and

the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for non-
executive Director) and other relevant Board committees, if invited;
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(d) bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board,
giving the Board and any committee on which he or she serves the
benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and participation in
the Board/committee meetings;

(e) scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

(M) ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform their
powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(@ conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation
or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in
accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality of the
candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall also be
evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise for
filing the office of an independent non-executive Director with such
qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended 31
March 2020 at which the members of the Nomination Committee
reviewed the Board’s structure, size, composition and diversity, assessed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and made
recommendation to the Board on the re-election of retiring Directors at
the 2019 AGM. The attendance record of each members of the
Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 28 of this annual
report.
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ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS, THE
BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND

GENERAL MEETING

Attendance of each Directors at all the Board meetings, Board committee
meetings and general meeting held during the year ended 31 March

2020 is set out as follows:
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Audit Nomination Remuneration
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ZESFLERE 202053 A 31 EJLEJ*
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Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meeting Meetings Meeting

Exg EXZEEE REZEES FMEES
EENE = =f =f g8 REXE
Executive Directors
HITES
Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) 8/8 N/A 1/1 N/A 11
REML LT (EE) 8/8 TE R 1/1 TEFA 1/1
Ms. Sze Tan Nei 8/8 N/A N/A 2/2 11
B ST &+ 8/8 TE A i A 2/2 1/1
Mr. Ang Ming Wah 7/8 N/A N/A N/A 11
HERES A 7/8 i A i A i A 1/1
Mr. Sze Wai Lun 8/8 N/A N/A N/A 11
M8 fa %k A& 8/8 NiE NiE NiE R 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors
BIYFHITES
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen 7/8 5/5 1/1 2/2 1/1
RERFEE 7/8 5/5 1/1 2/2 1/1
Mr. Chung Koon Yan 8/8 5/5 N/A 2/2 1/1
EIEA L L 8/8 5/5 TE A 2/2 1/1
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung 8/8 5/5 1/1 N/A 11
5 B 58 5 A4 8/8 5/5 1/1 TNEA 1/1
Mr. Wong Yat Sum 8/8 N/A 1/1 N/A 11
= 8/8 NiEA 1/1 NE A 11
Mr. Chan Chun Sing 8/8 5/5 N/A N/A 11
PR % 22 5 A4 8/8 5/5 @A TEF 1/1
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. All
Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and have exercised their duties with care,
skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group. The
Company continuously updates the Directors on the latest developments
regarding the GEM Listing Rules or the Listing Rules* and other
applicable regulatory and statutory requirements from time to time to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. The Company also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
March 2020 to the Company. Training record of each Director received
for the year ended 31 March 2020 is summarised below:
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Type of
Name of Director Training
BEEpE EHER
Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) R LT (F/E) B
Ms. Sze Tan Nei BE S 4 22 &= B
Mr. Ang Ming Wah AL EE S A B
Mr. Sze Wai Lun 1 12 f@ 58 A& B
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen RIBFEE A B
Mr. Chung Koon Yan EIEE TS A B
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung 5 B 58 5t A B
Mr. Wong Yat Sum =LA A B
Mr. Chan Chun Sing PR R B2 4T A A B

Notes:

A attending seminars and/or conference and/or forums on subjects relating to
directors’ duties and corporate governance

B reading newspaper, journals and updates as regards legal and regulatory
changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties

B &

A HETEREHESRERCEE R
ER/AEERHERE

B MEFHZEZEREERZPREZRITREAMN
MEEZHE BHRKHER

Annual Report 2020 20205 &1

29



30

Corporate Governance Report
TRERBHRE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of the senior management (comprising Directors) of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2020, by band is set out below:

EEREREEBNTM

HE2020F3A3HIEFEARAGRE
EE(BREES) N HIZ &% B S5
m :

Number of
Remuneration Band individual
¥ i &8 AE
Nil =z =

HK$1 — HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000

17 75—1,000,00058 7T

1,000,001 7 7£-1,500,000 7% 7T
1,500,001 7 752,000,000 7T
2,000,001 7% 7£—2,500,000 7 7T
2,500,001 7% 7£-3,000,000 7 JT
3,000,001 7% 7£ 3,500,000 JT
3,500,001 /& 7t -4,000,000 7% 7T
4,000,001 7% 7£—4,500,00078 JT

11

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by Shareholders

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general
meeting.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, there are no provisions allowing Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at the general meetings under the articles of
association of the Company or the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, as amended, modified and supplemented. Shareholders may
follow the procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary general
meeting for any business specified in such written requisition. The written
requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by
the relevant Shareholder(s) and deposited to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Suite 2702, 27th Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower, No. 8
Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the company secretary of the Company by post
to Suite 2702, 27th Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower, No. 8 Yeung Uk Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong, or via email at the contact
information as provided on the website of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change in the articles of association of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to date version of the
articles of association of the Company is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board’s Responsibilities for the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and oversees such systems on an ongoing
basis, while ensuring a review of the effectiveness of these systems of the
Group is conducted at least annually. The scope of such review covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of
risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, and
management has provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee and
the Board on the effectiveness of these systems for the year ended 31
March 2020.

Main Features of the Risk Management System

The Company recognises that good risk management is essential for the
long-term and sustainable growth of a business. The Group’s risk
management structure and the major responsibilities of each role of the
structure are summarized below:
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Major Responsibilities
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FERE

determines the business strategies and
objectives of the Group, and evaluates and
determines the nature and extent of the risks it
is wiling to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives;

oversees management in the design,
implement and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems;

oversees the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis
and ensures the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems;

reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems at
least annually, and such review should cover
all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

reviews the emerging risks of the Group
annually, and the risk management and the
internal controls in place to address those
risks;

discusses the risk management and internal
control systems with management of the
Group to ensure that the management of the
Group has performed its duty to have an
effective system. The discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function and
to rectify any weaknesses that may be
revealed from time to time;

considers major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative
and the Group’s management’s response to
these findings;

Wt
]
23

B

N RE B g
E% LI EEARE
BLREKRKKBEZEMEER
EMnRREEREE

BESREBREREK
2 O T

T}E
]ijr
ER aﬂ.a m};

REEEASENER
IE&W*BW‘TI%NL&EE1%
ARBBYLRERFREGE
B R ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ\]%ﬁ%
TRE

ELSF—RBHARE
AREEENBERRR
B0 7 M TR K R A TR
EMAEALR BEH
B EERARER

BEEHNASEFELD
Rk X% ERREER
WA ES IR R 32 5 Al B

HALEERERE
ERRANIETE RS
ﬁﬁ$%laﬁgaﬁ
HBREZEYBUEZSR - B
B REREASENS
TR ERRBEE S E 2
ﬁﬁ BITERERKER

ZIREREBHEERS
FEE 2 Sl R NS
IR K {E{a] 5538

FEEFENZIRHTEH -
ZRAMERE IR &N
EREENEEREAR
NEAEEEEEHZS
BRZEE

Annual Report 2020 20205 &1



34

Corporate Governance Report

EREABE

Role Major Responsibilities Ae FERE

Management designs, implements and ongoing assesses & 3% - R BEHREBFEFGHEAR
the Group’s risk management and internal S E R E R RN
control systems; LS
gives prompt responses to, and follow up the - EESFgNZR BRZ
findings on risk management and internal B g 8ok s a0 B M 1R
control matters as delegated by the Board, on o R E R &N BB
Audit Committee’s initiative or raised by the PEENEREEDEL
external consultant(s); PR A
provides confirmation to the Board and the - RMEEFSLEZZESRE
Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the REREENANILEE X
risk management and internal control systems; HEE M

Risk Owners ultimately accountable for ensuring the risk is  EBAEZEA — ZKREEHREAERSE®@E
managed appropriately; and EEE: R

In addition, the Company engaged an external consultant to conduct a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control

responsible for, or oversight of, activities to
manage each identified risk.

systems for the year ended 31 March 2020.
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Main Features of the Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The components of the framework are shown as

follow:
Control —

Environment

Risk Assessment —

Control Activities

Information and —
Communication

Monitoring =

a set of standards, processes and structures
that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

a dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining
how risks should be managed.

actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management
directives to mitigate risks to the achievement
of objectives are carried out.

internal and external communication to
provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each components of
internal control is present and functioning.

Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage

Significant Risks

|dentification —

Evaluation —

Management =

identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the
achievement of objectives.

analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication with the Board in respect of
the risks and on-going monitor the residual
risks.
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Process used to Review the Effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to Resolve Material Internal Control Defects

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are submitted
to the Audit Committee and the Board annually. The Board, through the
Audit Committee, had performed a review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including, but not
limited to, (i) the changes, in the nature and extent of significant risks and
the Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment, (i) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing
monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems, (i) the extent and
frequency of communication of monitoring results to the Audit Committee
and the Board which enables them to assess control of the Company
and the effectiveness of risk management, (iv) significant control failings
or weaknesses that have been identified, and (v) the effectiveness of the
Company’s processes for financial reporting and GEM Listing Rules
compliance, and considered that the risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate for the year ended 31
March 2020. No significant areas of concern that might affect the
financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk management
functions of the Group were identified. The scope of such review covers
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions and their attitude
against internal control of the Group. The Board will continue to work
with the Management to discuss and follow-up on the status of
remediation of the internal control weaknesses and to monitor the risks of
the Group in the coming years.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling
and Dissemination of Inside Information

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of
its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an inside
information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have
been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

— access of inside information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis.

—  transmission of inside information in electronic form should be
password-protected.

—  prohibit employees to discuss inside information in public area.
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— code names are assigned to confidential projects so that any
reference to them would not be linked to the projects themselves to
minimize possibilities of unintentional leakage.

— trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with
reasonable care.

—  confidentiality agreements are in place before the Group enters into
significant negotiations.

—  officers and employees other than the designated representative
are prohibited to speak externally on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view
that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, as opposed to diverting resources to establish a separate internal
audit department, it would be more cost effective to appoint external
independent professionals to perform independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at
least annually the need for an internal audit department.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-17), to provide
compliance and full range of company secretarial services to the Group
in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing regulatory
environment and to suit difference commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Pui Shan, Bessie (“Ms. Chan”), the representative of Uni-1, has
been appointed as the company secretary with effect from 13 June
2016. Her primary corporate contact person at the Company is Ms. Sze
Tan Nei, an executive Director.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, Ms. Chan has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule 5.15
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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EREARE

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of

potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the total fees in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by BDO Limited, the auditor of the Company,

are set out as follows:

BEENEABEZRE
ARREMEEENSABETREEY 2
FRTHEREE ZRRTHE-
ZEEN S
HE2020FE3A31BILFE » st AR FIZE

MMEBLEERSAMEBMARRAFIR
HH BT RIEFA R EREREHINWT :

Fee paid/
Services rendered payable
gt/
PR 7% 38 5l ENER
HK$’'000
FAT
Audit services: BT ART -
— Annual audit for the year ended 31 March 2020 — HE2020F 383N B It FEZFEER 560
Non-audit services: B ARTS -
— Perform agree-upon procedures for interimand ~ — gt IR EE X E RN ENITH EIZF
quarterly results announcements 180
— Other services — H R 190
Total st 930
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements of the Group and other financial disclosures required under
the GEM Listing Rules or Listing Rules* and the Company’s management
will provide information and explanation to the Board to enable it to make
informed assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company in respect of its reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2020 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
89 to 94 of this annual report.

* The GEM Listing Rules was applicable to the Company prior to the Transfer of
Listing. Immediately after the Transfer of Listing, the Listing Rules shall be
applicable to the Company.
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1.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
published by the Company presents the efforts and achievements
made in sustainability and social responsibility by the Group. The
ESG Report details the performance of the Group in carrying out
the environmental and social policies and fulfilling the principle of
sustainable development.

1.1

1.2

1.3

Scope of the Report

The ESG Report covers the environmental and social
performance of the Group’s business for the year ended 31
March 2020 (the “Year”). The environmental key performance
indicators (“KPI”) as disclosed in the ESG Report are based
on the performance of the principal office, the warehouse and
the fleet vehicles of the Group for the Year. For details of
corporate governance, please refer to the corporate
governance report on pages 19 to 39 of this annual report.

Reporting Standard

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG
Reporting Guide”) under Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing
Rules and has complied with the “comply or explain”
provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide.

Stakeholder Engagement

The engagement of our employees from different departments
of the Group helps us recognize our sustainability
performance. The diligently collected and carefully analyzed
data underscores not only the Group’s sustainable initiatives
for the Year, but also the Group’s short-term and long-term
sustainability strategy. The Group will continue to increase the
involvement of stakeholders via constructive conversation
with a view to charting a course for long term prosperity.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

1.4 Information and Feedbacks

Your opinions are highly valued. If you have any queries or
suggestions, please feel free to contact the Company:

Email: ir@winsongrouphk.com

Address: Suite 2702, 27/F, Tower 2, Nina Tower,
8 Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong

GREEN MANAGEMENT

As a business providing environmental hygiene and related
services, it is the Group’s target to keep the city clean and green.
The Group is aware of the impacts on the natural environment
caused by its businesses so we strive to protect our environment
during our operation and service provision. We are dedicated to
adopting an effective environmental management system, as well
as carrying out an assortment of measures with respect to emission
control, waste management and resources conservation in an effort
to help shape a green city.

2.1 Environmental Management System

To achieve green management, the Group has adopted an
environmental management system and is certified to ISO
14001. The Environmental Protection Committee (“EPC”),
which serves to oversee the environmental management of
the Group and maintain close collaborations with green
groups and chambers of commerce, continues to ensure that
the management system operates effectively while promoting
sustainable development within the Group. Under the
guidance of EPC, potential negative environmental impacts
during operation are continuously assessed so that
corresponding solutions can be implemented.

The Group fully understands that the provision of
environmental hygiene and related services has direct
impacts to the environment, thus the environmental
management system was designed to minimize possible
impacts arisen from air emission, water discharge and waste
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BRE HERERKRS

2.2

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

disposal. We are also able to implement environmentally-
friendly measures for cutting down emission and resources
consumption with the environmental management system.
The system also helps to minimize impacts of our services
which allow our clients, when using our services, to reduce
their environmental impacts. For instance, we advocate the
use of cleaning procedures and equipment with lower level of
harmful chemicals in detergent and pesticides to avoid
detrimental impacts on the environment, and we also carry
out waste sorting for our clients for recycling.

As part of the comprehensive management system, training
sessions such as introduction to environmental ordinances
pertained to wastewater discharge and carbon auditing, and
courses about the impacts of climate change on outdoor
hygiene works were provided to our employees during the
Year.

The Group has received the Hong Kong Green Organisation
certification issued by the Environmental Campaign
Committee during the Year for its excellence in green
management, acting as recognition on our efforts and
commitments to the environment.

Wastewater and Air Emission

Detergents are frequently used during the provision of our
hygiene services, which are therefore the major source of
wastewater discharge of the Group. By sticking to local laws
and regulations such as Water Pollution Control Ordinance
and Waterworks Ordinance, wastewater generated by our
services is discharged into the municipal sewage system. Our
on-site employees are required to follow standard water
pollution control procedures such as the dilution of
wastewater before discharge in a bid to minimize relevant
impacts.

In regard to air emission, our fleet vehicles, which include
trucks and private cars owned by the Group to support its
environmental hygiene and related services, are the main
source of air emission of the Group. The Group strictly
complies with relevant laws and regulations such as Air
Pollution Control Ordinance and Ozone Layer Protection
Ordinance for proper emission management.
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Air pollutants emission (for the year ended 31 March 2020
and 31 March 2019):

R #HERERME

= R5EY N E(H 22020
F£3HA31H &2019F3A31H 1k
FE)

2020 2019
Types EE 2020 £F 20194
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) (g) RE/LWNO,) (52) 1,345 1,451
Sulphur oxides (SO,) (g)' e L ¥ (SO (=)' 1.75 1.78
Particulate Matter (PM) (g) B OB (PM) (52) 86 94

Apart from air pollutants, greenhouse gas is another major
type of air emission of the Group. Our fleet vehicles release
not only pollutants, but also greenhouse gases such as
carbon dioxide (CO,), methane (CH,) and nitrous oxide (N,O).
Besides, the operation of our offices will also directly and
indirectly emit greenhouse gas through the use of electricity
and disposal of paper to landfill.

Greenhouse gas emission (for the year ended 31 March 2020
and 31 March 2019):

BRI AEYIN RERBAAR
SEERINNS —TBBE -
P9 BO B B B R T M2 BE OS2
¥ - IREER I — | AL ER(CO,) ~ B
Ke(CH) & BAL AN F R E
Ao Lo HMPIMERNEE
NEeEEERLHEEBBENERR
R EEBEBUR ERE

BERBBHENE (B 22020F3 A
31H &201943 A31HIELFE):

2020 2019

Indicators BE 2020 F 20194
Total greenhouse gas emission (tons CO,,) A EREHNEE

(M| fbiE 2 342 349

Direct emission (Scope 1)2 BEEBEm(EE)? 301 306

Indirect emission (Scope 2)° MR (FEE2)° 33 33

Indirect emission (Scope 3)* PR (FE3)* 8 10

Total greenhouse gas emission per revenue G U8 = RS ME S 0.60 0.65

(tons CO,/million Hong Kong dollars of
revenue)

Recognizing the impacts of greenhouse gases on global
warming and climate change, the Group has been committed
to controlling its carbon footprint through a number of
measures including the reduction of paper consumption and
energy conservation (For details, please refer to “Waste
Management” and “Energy and Water Conservation”).

The data are rounded to 2 decimal places for better comparison.

Data includes greenhouse gas emission derived from fuel combustion of the
Group’s vehicles.

Data includes greenhouse gas emission derived from the use of purchased
electricity in the Group’s principal office and warehouse.

Data includes greenhouse gas emission derived from disposal of paper to landfills.

(W — i E &
WA EETT)

AEETREEREBHE 2IREL
ERIEEZZE HEHNE
BAERE (B D &ERER
KETRE) EHI AR (FBEFL
BITRE Y & 32 | B[ 8 49 8 IR Bk
BIR]D)

REHFBLER - BUEREEWE/) LA -
BEERBRASHERMRAMREELENRER
BEHEDK -
PEERASEIERERRERAERIE
BEHRELEREEREBEMR -

BB EREEAEEELNRERBIR -

Annual Report 2020 20205 &£

43



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HLERERBRSE

2.3 Waste Management

In addition to wastewater and air emission, proper waste
management is also a core part of our green management.
Office operation is always essential in supporting the main
business of the Group, which will generate both hazardous
and non-hazardous waste. During the Year, the non-
hazardous waste as disposed of from our principal office and
warehouse consisted mainly of paper and daily garbage
discarded by staff, while hazardous waste included toner
cartridges and battery cells. As the Group was not involved in
product manufacturing and processing, no packaging
materials were used and no waste associated with packaging
was generated during the Year.

Non-hazardous waste disposal (for the year ended 31 March
2020 and 31 March 2019):

23 BEYER

B B K S BE SR BE RSN - B E R EE
MERNRHRMAZSEENZL
MO - MEREE-—BEHYIHA
SENIZXBEHEE EF
CELRENEEEY RAF
B HZMEEREFRELERRE
MEBEEEMIZEBERBEIEREN
MERBELUR MAEZEDE
EEEMEM  ARAKELE
BRERBERNT  Fit KA
FEYEERBEMHREL R
BEMEBOEY

mEREYEE (A £2020F3 A
31B M2019FE3A31BIEFEE):

2020 2019

Indicators BE 20205 20194

Total non-hazardous waste (tons) EEREY EE (HE) 29 24

Non-hazardous waste per office staff ZWMAZTETELAN 0.06 0.05
(tons/person) EEREY (W FN)

Hazardous waste disposal (for the year ended 31 March EEREMEE(H 220205348

2020 and 31 March 2019):

31 H K2019E3A31BIEFE):

2020 2019
Indicators EE 2020 F 20194
Total hazardous waste (kg)® BEREWEE(TR)® 8.6 N/AT 38
Hazardous waste per office staff (kg/person) & & #i A= 8 T &E 4 /Y 0.19 N/A i@ F
BEEYM (TR BA)
5 Weight of hazardous waste was calculated starting from the Year. 5 BEEBMHNEERNANFERKAFE -
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To appropriately handle the waste generated, the Group
strictly conforms to the laws and regulations regarding waste
management such as the Waste Disposal Ordinance, and
works with a qualified waste collection company so as to
ensure both the non-hazardous and hazardous waste are
treated properly. In an effort to cut down on waste, we
encourage our office staff to use reusable and recyclable
appliances such as bottles, cups, chinaware, rechargeable
batteries and other equipment. Besides, we advocate the use
of environmentally-friendly materials where appropriate, for
instance, to print internal documents with recycled paper. For
toner cartridges, all used cartridges are collected
independently by the suppliers for recycling in a bid to avoid
harmful impacts and at the same time reduce waste.

Paper saving and recycling plays a vital role not only in waste
reduction, but also in the alleviation of global warming. The
Group implements the policy of double-sided printing and
copying and disseminates information by electronic means
whenever possible to reduce the consumption of paper.
Recycling bins are also available for staff to recycle used
paper and paper products. We aim to lower the amount of
waste discarded to landfill and hence reduce carbon
emission.

Energy and Water Conservation

Energy and water conservation is a key element of our
environmental management system as the use of energy and
water is unavoidable in office operation. During the Year, the
burning of fuels for vehicles and the use of electricity were the
major sources of energy consumption of the Group, which
resulted in a total energy consumption of 1,176 MWh (2019:
1,194 MWh), while the average consumption per million Hong
Kong dollars of revenue was 2.07 MWh (2019: 2.22 MWh).
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64
5%

Energy Consumption by Types
REDE D HEEFRERE

Use of vehicles 2019
B A 2020 W

In consideration of the potential impacts of energy consumption to
the environment, the Group has shouldered the burden of energy
conservation and implemented energy-saving measures. As part of
our many energy-saving initiatives, we require the temperature of
our office to be maintained at an energy-efficient level, which is set
at between 24°C-26°C. The Group’s subsidiary has also signed the
“Energy Saving Charter on No Incandescent Light Bulbs (ILB)” to
abandon the use of ILB and to install energy-saving fluorescent
tubes. To optimize the efficiency of fuel consumption for vehicles,
checkups and maintenance are periodically performed in an
attempt to maintain the optimal condition of our vehicles. By
practically improving energy efficiency and reducing consumption,
we strive to minimize our carbon footprint in office operation.

As water is a precious natural resource, the Group believes that
everyone shares the responsibility to adopt a sustainable use of
water resources. Therefore, we encourage our office staff to use
water only when justified. We also work to prevent wastage of
water by installing flow restrictors and spray nozzles wherever
possible, reminding employees to turn off the faucet tightly and fix
dripping taps immediately once discovered. Currently, the Group
does not have access to water consumption data in the principal
office since water supply and discharge are managed by the
management company of the property in which the office is

located.
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Electricity usage 2019
BNEHA 2020

Unit: MWh
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OUR PEOPLE

Human resources are the foundation hence the most valuable asset
of the Group, thus building a reliable, efficient and productive team
is of paramount importance. We have established a comprehensive
human resources policy, taking care of the employment,
remuneration, development as well as the rights and welfare of our
employees.

3.1 Employment

The Group highly focuses on recruiting talents as it is our
conviction that employing suitable persons is of ultimate
importance to the business’s thriving development. We
strictly abide by local labor laws and regulations regarding
compensation, benefits, dismissal, working hours and rest
period, such as the Employment Ordinance and Employees’
Compensation Ordinance. Throughout the whole recruitment
process, a non-discrimination approach is put in place that
the Group also employs people with disabilities without any
discrimination (For details, please refer to “Contribution to the
Community”).

Besides, the Group stringently prohibits the employment of
child labour through identity and age verification such as ID
card check. To avoid forced labour, employees are required
to enter into the labour contract clearly stating their duties
and responsibilities before the official commencement of
work. Overtime work is on a voluntary basis to further prevent
forced labour and overtime pay will be made in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations.
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As at 31 March 2020, the Group has employed in total 1,967
employees. The total workforce (for the year ended 31 March
2020 and 31 March 2019) is summarized below:

B E2020F3A31H "NEEHE
& #£1,967% 1 B - & £2020

£3H31H R2019%€3 8318 It

FEMREBBAHSEBRNT

2020 2019

Indicators BE 2020 F 20194
Total number and percentage (%) EERAHBKEA DL (%)
By gender M RIE o
Male =g 560 (28) 590 (28)
Female ez 1,407 (72) 1,530(72)
By employment type (%) ZIREEERE D (%)
Permanent K H 1,946 (99) 2,026 (96)
Temporary B2 B 21(1) 94 (4)
3.2 Welfare and Rights 32 TR RER

The Group is responsible to assure all our staff of the
statutory rights and welfare and is pleased to provide
employees with extra benefits so that they can achieve
maximum satisfaction from working in the Group. We offer
our employees a competitive remuneration package that
discretionary bonus is provided based on individual
performance and the Group’s financial performance. Apart
from statutory holidays, our employees can also enjoy
different types of leave, including annual leave, sick leave,
casual leave, compassionate leave and maternity leave. As an
appreciation for the contribution and dedication of long-
serving employees, long service award will be presented.

The Group believes that two-way communication is essential
to employee engagement, which brings higher job
satisfaction, higher productivity, and lower turnover rate. The
Staff Welfare Committee was thereby set up to provide
proper channels for quality communication between
employees and management. In order to foster team spirit,
we have organized several recreational activities during the
Year such as Christmas party and Chinese New Year dinner.
Furthermore, the introduction of casual wear day every Friday
and birthday leave also represents the consistent endeavor
by the committee in providing a friendly workplace.
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Career Development

In order to maintain the competitiveness of our employees
and establish an excellent team, we review our employees’
performance regularly and provide recommendations on their
training needs and career development during performance
appraisals. Promotion opportunities are provided so that
employees can find their career paths within the Group.
Promotion within the Group is executed on a fair and open
basis that employees’ character, ability and performance at
work are taken into consideration, while any form of
discrimination on grounds of gender, race, skin colour, age,
religion and nationality are intolerable.

Nurturing Talent and Succession Planning

To enrich our employees’ experience and industry knowledge,
the Group provides orientation and internal training to
employees in a targeted, systematic and forward-looking
approach. During the Year, new employees received
orientation training while other employees received regular
general business operation training. Furthermore, the Group
also provided training and workshops held by internal and
external parties on different topics such as media handling,
anti-corruption, information technology system application,
environmental protection and ISO implementation to
employees from different departments.

In addition, to further strengthen employees’ skills and enrich
their knowledge, employees are encouraged to join external
training that is subsidized by the Group. We put specific
attention to workplace safety training where we highly
recommend a number of courses organized by professional
bodies such as the Occupational Safety and Health Council,
the Hong Kong Safety Training Association and the
Construction Industry Council to employees. These training
sessions include occupational safety topics such as
pestilence control equipment usage and occupational safety
when working in confined spaces. Employees are also
encouraged to attend external talks and seminars to enrich
their knowledge in discharging their duties.
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4. OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

Health and safety issues in the workplace are risks that could
hinder the development of a business. On the contrary, a safe and
healthy workplace not only protects the well-being of employees, it
also enhances productivity and competitiveness. Thus, the Group
sees occupational safety and employees’ health as an integral part
of its sustainable development and always puts priority on the
protection for employees’ health and safety.

4.1

4.2

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Safety Management System

A comprehensive work safety management and supervision
system is vital for enhancing safety performance. We strictly
comply with local laws and regulations regarding occupational
health and safety, such as the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance, and Factories and Industrial Undertakings
(Dangerous Substances) Regulations, when implementing our
safety management. Our safety management system is
certified to the Occupational Health and Safety Assessment
Series OHSAS 18001 and ISO 45001, which are both
internationally-recognized standards regarding occupational
health and safety systems within organizations. The Safety
Committee, which oversees the safety management of the
whole Group, is involved in promoting occupational health
and workplace safety to our employees and conducting
periodic review on workplace safety and occupational health
measures. Furthermore, the Group’s subsidiaries are also
members of the Green Cross Group organized by the
Occupational Safety and Health Council.

Safe and Healthy Workplace

The Group has formulated a full set of guidelines and
procedures for safety training, operation inspection and risk
assessment. We provide personal protective equipment to
our employees whenever necessary, and at the same time
offer safety briefing and training to raise their awareness of
workplace safety and health. Workplace safety inspection is
conducted regularly to identify the hazards associated with
activities of different working procedures and to evaluate the
risks associated with the hazards identified. In response to
the risk evaluation result, preventive and protective measures
are implemented. In order to minimize the occupational health
and safety risk, some employees are required to obtain
relevant certificates through completing courses such as
work at height safety training course so that they are
knowledgeable about the job-related protective measures.
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4.3 Accident Handling Scheme

Our employees are subject to work-related accidents and
injuries given the nature of our service despite protective
measures being implemented. In case there is work-related
accident, we conduct a detailed analysis for the cause of
injuries and implement measures to improve or rectify the
issues. We continuously monitor the improvement measures
and our employees have participated in fire drills to minimize
the possibility of accidents.

OUTSTANDING OPERATION

As a high-end service provider, quality, reliability and safety of our
service are the keys to our success. The Group never spares itself
in the pursuit of excellence in its operations and service through the
management of its supply chain, service quality and the provision of
customer services.

5.1 Supply Chain Management

The Group pays careful attention to the management of the
entire supply chain by sticking to the commitment of
sustainable development. During supplier and sub-contractor
selection, a balanced judgment is made by considering a
plenty of factors, including their environmental performance.
Emphasis is laid especially on the aspects of environmental
protection, quality as well as health and safety, where
suppliers with certification of ISO 14001, ISO 9001, OHSAS
18001 or other accreditation will be given preference during
selection.

After supplier selection, we continuously evaluate our
suppliers and sub-contractors in regard to raw materials and
service quality, reliability, environmental performance and
occupational health and safety as well as timely delivery to
minimize the relevant risk. We also have green procurement
guidelines which take green purchasing principles into
consideration. Besides, the usage of material is constantly
evaluated to avoid overstocking and squandering resources.
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5.2

5.3

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Service Quality

Service quality is one of our major concemns as we aim at
providing the best quality service to our clients. The Group
places great emphasis on quality control and our quality
management system has been certified to ISO 9001. We
have set formal procedures for quality checks where
employees are sent to check the quality of service performed
on-site regularly, including services delivered by both the
Group’s employees and third-party service providers. We
also visit our clients to conduct client reviews and to record
occasions of substandard performance for follow-up actions.

The Group is also committed to protecting the health and
safety of our clients. For example, Winson Professional Pest
Control Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company
which provides pest management services, is required to use
pesticides registered under the Pesticides Ordinance. This is
to eradicate harmful pests while taking into account the basic
principles of public health and environmental protection.
During the Year, the Group has strived to provide preferential
appointment to enterprises which implemented effective
safety management system and passed Occupational Safety
and Health Council’s stringent safety audit when choosing
third-party service providers.

Client Services

The Group is devoted to achieving the highest customer
satisfaction by providing professional and client-oriented
service. To understand clients’ needs, we conduct site
assessment and communicate with clients before service
provision. Our management will hold regular meetings with
on-site employees to review operations in various aspects so
as to ensure that clients’ expectations can be met. Clients’
feedback on service quality, environmental and workplace
safety performance and application of material and tools is
also collected as a source for making corresponding
improvement. In response to client complaints, we will
investigate the root cause and carry out remedial and
preventive actions promptly according to the client complaint
handling procedures set by the Group.
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Advertising and Information Security

With regard to advertising, the Group has designated
specialized employees to monitor notices, news and
information in the media in connection with tenders regarding
environmental hygiene and related services and airline
catering support services. We strive to ensure relevant local
laws and regulations are strictly conformed with.

The Group highly values the confidentiality of data of our
clients. We strictly comply with local laws and regulations
regarding privacy matter, such as the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance. We are committed to maintaining transparency,
legitimacy, relevance and accuracy when we handle the
confidential data of our clients. Our office staff is required to
enter into a confidentiality agreement which forbids him/her to
disclose confidential or proprietary information outside the
Group, either during or after employment, without the
Group’s authorization. Besides, we endeavor to protect the
IT system from virus contamination, cyber attack and leakage
of confidential information by implementing the IT security
policy that specifies the roles of different parties within the
Group and regulates the access and protection of
information. Training relating to cyber security and relevant
risk management would be provided to our employees from
time to time to enhance their awareness of cyber security.

Anti-corruption

In order to maintain the Group’s integrity and justice, we
strictly comply with the laws and regulations regarding
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, such as the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. To maintain high standards
of corporate governance, we fulfill our commitment through
abiding by anti-corruption policies and guidelines, such as
those related to acceptance of gifts and conflicts of interest.
Related procedures and guidelines are available in the
employee handbook. Employees can report any irregularities
to the designated personnel and the Group will investigate
the improper behaviors and take corresponding remedial
measures against the irregularities. The Group is not aware of
any breach of laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to any kinds of corrupt
practices during the Year.

4 EEREAZRE

5.5

514
i

BEESHE AKEERKESR
ERARNREAERBBARSE R
EERERBBZRAEN
#E R EEHEE - LA RER
BIRE TR BEAMER AR -

3

r}

b

AEESEERATEPENAK
ZE-RPEBETARLES
B AL R FOER - Il ndE
ABER (L) &P ERER
FH#EERE  HAKNER
BRAE /AN AR ERE
- BTHARIRE W &
FREGFPEERGEAEEEED
ERTRERMEKXERAA
SEIBRBERTRETEH -

SO BB REE AR RS

EEMERR BRBBERHBE
BERRE  BHMAEEEAMRRF
ZHE  FIAAREEANSTHAB
A UHREERAERERE -}
P EREESRHTERER L
2 RAEEREREROE - AL
BERFHORPELE2EH -

- S

RES

REEAEENRERALE &
PMEmETHERBER BHR K

RO REROERFORR - i
CBr LLBEER 501D - RARIT KT

WEEER BMERETRE
SBUR RIESI (A B ZE R
KR & 7 2e 5 ) B 17 3 M &9 &
EoHBERERFRESIEHAET
FM-BETREEABRSE
MERITA MAKEHEAET
BT ARERITARIUVEED
ARER - RAFE  ALBEL
NRBEEREKEREEZENER
WTHAEBEREAFENTM
ERABNESTR-

Annual Report 2020 20205 &1

53



54

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
oo = S,
RIE #HERERKRS

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

CONTRIBUTION TO THE COMMUNITY

The Group has long been putting great effort in creating a
harmonious and inclusive community through various ways. During
the Year, we continued to provide employment opportunities for
people with disabilities to help them integrate into the community.
Based on the disability and expertise, we made appropriate
arrangements of work for the disabled employees. Appropriate
types of support, such as targeted training and emotional
counseling, were always available when required. In order to
promote disabled employees’ integration into the community and
foster social integration of able-bodied and disabled persons, out-
of-work gatherings and counseling sessions are organized in their
spare time and working time.

As recognition of our persistent care towards people with
disabilities, one of the Group’s subsidiaries was awarded with the
Caring Employer Gold Medal under the “Caring Employer
Commendation Scheme 2019” co-organized by the Kwun Tong
District International Day of Disabled Persons Working Group and
the Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped Youth.

On the other hand, the Group also supports social service and
education by making charitable donation. During the Year, we
sponsored the outstanding trainee selection of the School of
Vocational Training of Hong Kong College of Technology (“HKCT”),
which helped to nurture talent for the community. The Group has
also attended the Kwun Tong District Caring Employer Scheme
2019 prize presentation ceremony organized by the Hong Kong
Federation of Handicapped Youth as a prize presenter, showing full
support to the scheme and people with disabilities.

Moreover, we are a member of “Employers Consultative
Committee” organized by HKCT to provide up-to-date industry
information to our youth. Our social commitment also encompasses
the establishment of the Social Service Committee through which
our employees actively participate in community service and
stimulate a caring and respectful corporate culture. The spirit of
service, as well as the care and love shared by the committee not
only helps to make a difference among the needy, but also helps to
foster a harmonious atmosphere within the community.

Looking into the future, the Group will continue with its efforts in
supporting and empowering the community. It is hoped that long-
term values can be created for society so that the Group can grow
together with society and the people.
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APPENDIX: KPI REPORTING GUIDE

fi s : AREARE R RS S

KPI Description Chapters Page No.
BREWEE ot E=4:0] 'R
Environment
B
A1 Emissions
B
Al The types of emissions and respective Water and Air Emission 42-43
emissions data.
PERR ) AE KR K A B HE PR o JEE 7K B & SRHE PR
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where ~ Water and Air Emission 42-43
appropriate, intensity.
BERBEHERER (MER)EE - JBE 7K B & SRHE R
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where Waste Management 44-45
appropriate, intensity.
FEAEEEEVRER (WMER)EE - RE 1) E I8
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, Waste Management 44-45
where appropriate, intensity.
FEAEZSEEVHEER(WMER)EE . BYER
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions ~ Waste Management; Energy and 44-46
and results achieved. Water Conservation
BB R ENRBRAEKRE - BEYER : B8R RKEIR
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Waste Management 44-45

hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
HILEEBEEERBEEEEVN L E  RIE
EEXEENEERMAERKR -
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KPI Description Chapters Page No.
BREMNEES ot =4} 'R
A2 Use of Resources
ERER
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by Energy and Water Conservation 45-46
type in total and intensity.
REDNEASHEER SIEEEREEE HORREKER
RBEE o
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Energy and Water Conservation 45-46
BREKEREE - B 4 BE IR B K B TR
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives Energy and Water Conservation 45-46
and results achieved.
e IR AR 8 RATEKR - g A Be IR KK B R
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in Energy and Water Conservation 45-46
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
B SKBGERKR R BERBEE - Uk S8R KEKKER
RABKRSFERAFEHR -
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Waste Management 44-45
products and, if applicable, with reference to
per unit produced.
B mATAREMHENEER(WERE EYDERE
FEBREE -
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
RERARER
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of Environmental Management System; 41-46

activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.
HMEBEHHRERRAERNEKRY
EREEDNERFEXENTE -

Wastewater and Air Emission; Waste
Management; Energy and Water
Conservation

REEERREG: BRKEERHE
W EMER: AR RKE
i
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
on L=r N
BiE HEREARS

KPI Description Chapters Page No.
BREMNEES ot E=4:0] "R
Social
e
B1 Employment
=%
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, Employment 47-48
age group and geographical region.
BRER - BEEER FRANRMES D ERE
B{E BB -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group No relevant disclosure for the Year N/A
and geographical region.
BIER  FhRERNRMRBRESNEERE AFEUVEEHBEFH NiE A
b o
B2 Health and Safety
BEEZE
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. No relevant disclosure for the Year N/A
EITEBEERMETH AB KL ZE - REZIEIEHEREFEH A
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. No relevant disclosure for the Year N/A
ATBEARTHERE - AF R EIEEREFE ANiE A
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety Safety Management System; Safe 50-51
measures adopted, how they are implemented  and Healthy Workplace; Accident
and monitored. Handling Scheme
MR BERREZ2ERE Uk ZRE2EERBR 22 RERNT
HEARITRERG A - eSS P - BONGIEHIE
B3 Development and Training
BRREI
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by No relevant disclosure for the Year N/A
gender and employee category.
BRUEMEEERANE S ORINEERD AEFREUVEHEHFEFH NiE A
EF ©
B3.2 The average training hours completed per No relevant disclosure for the Year N/A
employee by gender and employee category.
RUEFIREERNE D BEEEXRAR AFREULEEHFEFHE A

B 9 S 15 B 8
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BRE HERERKRS

KPI Description Chapters Page No.
BREMNEES ot E=4:0] "R
B4 Labor Standards
BT
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment  Employment 47-48
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
BT HEEfNERARRETIRE ERE
e
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such No relevant disclosure for the Year N/A
practices when discovered.
B EERERBEAREREHEEN MR AFEUEAHKEFH A
B Hy B o
B5 Supply Chain Management
HrEEEE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. No relevant disclosure for the Year N/A
iR E S EEREEA - REZIEIFE 5 FFEH NiE
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain Management 51
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.
R EEERAMERNED RmERTE HEHEE
BEGIMEEEEE  URBEBEEGHR
TRERERE-
B6 Product Responsibility
EmEE
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped No relevant disclosure for the Year N/A
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
EEXRCEXERBETALLERRE AFEVEABREFE ANiE A
AmARKKNE D -
B6.2 Number of products and service related No relevant disclosure for the Year N/A
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
EEBAREMRRBNIEFREUREY AFELEHHFEFEFR A
Tk e
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing No relevant disclosure for the Year N/A
and protecting intellectual property rights.
MR ERNRRENEEZRFTENEN - AXFRZUVEEHFEFH ANiE A
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and Service Quality 52

recall procedures.
HAEREERTREREKREF

RGEE
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B-dHEegREA®RS

KPI Description Chapters Page No.
BREMNEES ot = 'R
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and Advertising and Information Security 53
privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored.
RBEEEERRERLEBRR  UARE BEEREALZE
BT NERTE -
B7 Anti-corruption
REF
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding Anti-corruption 53
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the reporting period and
the outcomes of the cases.
RBEHANHETASIHEERBRLITEE RES
RHOBSFLARENEE RFRER -
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and Anti-corruption 53
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.
P EERERBREF URBEHT RES
MEERTE -
B8 Community Investment
HERE
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Contribution to the Community 54
EIEREE- O] £5 #t [@
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. No relevant disclosure for the Year N/A
EEITHEMBAEIR - ANEREUEEHREEFET A
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EEREREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Ng Sing Mui (R B24§) (‘Madam Ng”), aged 59, a co-founder of
the Group, has been appointed as a Director since 31 May 2016. Madam
Ng was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017 and
is currently acting as the chairperson of the Company. She is also the
chairperson of the Nomination Committee and holds directorships in all
subsidiaries of the Company. Madam Ng is primarily responsible for the
strategic planning, operation planning and overall management of the
Group.

Madam Ng has more than 30 years of experience in the environmental
hygiene services industry in Hong Kong. Building the business from the
ground up since December 1983, Madam Ng has held a leadership role
in the overall management and business development of the Group.

Madam Ng has been a certified associate fellow of the Institute of
Managers and Leaders Australia and New Zealand (formerly known as
Australian Institute of Management) since September 1995 and has
become a fellow member since June 2019. She was also awarded a
Training Certificate on Fire Prevention (Commercial Sector) issued by the
Occupational Safety & Health Council in August 2001.

Madam Ng is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei and Mr. Sze Wai Lun, both
are executive Directors. She is the sole director of Rich Cheer
Development Limited and Sze’s Holdings Limited, both companies have
disclosable interests in the Shares under the provisions in Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”).
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Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Sze Tan Nei (i#EFHE) (‘Ms. Sze”), aged 40, joined the Group in
February 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016. Ms.
Sze was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017.
She is also a member of the Remuneration Committee. Ms. Sze also
holds directorships in several subsidiaries of the Company. She is
primarily responsible for strategic planning, operation planning and
compliance control of the Group’s business operation.

Ms. Sze graduated from Queensland University of Technology, Australia,
with a Bachelor of Business (Management) in October 2004. She
completed the Pest Control and Pesticide Safety for Industrial
Undertakings course organised by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2008. Ms. Sze was certified as a Quality Management Systems Auditor
by the International Register of Certificated Auditors, by completing the
Lead Auditor Training Course (in accordance to international standards
ISO 9001:2008 & ISO 19011:2002) co-organised by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency and International Management Systems
Associates Limited in October 2009. She has also completed the
Environmental Management Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training
Course for ISO 14001:2004 & ISO 19011:2002 in January 2010, and the
Occupational Health & Safety Management Systems Auditor/Lead
Auditor Training Course for BS OHSAS 18001:2007 & ISO 19011:2002
in April 2011. In July 2017, she has completed the Intensive ISO
9001:2015 QMS and ISO 14001:2015 EMS Internal Auditor Training
organised by SGS Hong Kong Limited. Ms. Sze has also awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health and
Safety Management Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training Course
issued by SGS United Kingdom Ltd. in September 2019.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Sze was employed as property
management assistant in April 2005 by Jones Lang LaSalle Management
Services Ltd, being a company engaging in the provision of services
specialising in real estates. She was subsequently promoted to the
position of assistant management surveyor in March 2006 and remained
in that position until she left such company in August 2006. In August
2006, she was employed as a marketing assistant in the communications
department of Hongkong Land Group Limited, being a company
engaging in property investment, management and development until
February 2007.

Ms. Sze is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui, the chairperson of the
Company and an executive Director, and the sister of Mr. Sze Wai Lun,
an executive Director.
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EEREREEE

Mr. Ang Ming Wah (383%E) (“Mr. Ang”), aged 64, joined the Group in
March 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016. Mr. Ang
was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017. He is
primarily responsible for the business development and planning, control
and management of the Group’s business operation.

Mr. Ang graduated from the University of Waterloo, Canada, with a
Bachelor of Mathematics in October 1978, and Bachelor of Arts in
October 1979. He also completed an executive program organised by
the Business School of the University of Michigan in 1997. Mr. Ang was
admitted as an associate member of the Hong Kong Management
Association in 1986 and was appointed as an “Occupational Safety and
Health Ambassador” by the Occupational Safety & Health Council in
2008.

Mr. Ang has over 30 years of experience in the environmental hygiene
services industry in Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, Mr. Ang was
employed by Reliance Services Company Limited (currently known as
ISS Facility Services Limited), being a company engaging in the provision
of environmental hygiene related services, as operations manager in May
1986. He was subsequently promoted to senior operations manager in
October 1988. Mr. Ang left such company in February 2000 and his last
position held was director in operation department. Mr. Ang subsequently
joined Best Result Cleaning Services Ltd. (currently known as Best Result
Environmental Services Limited), being a company engaging in the
provision of cleaning services, as general manager in July 2000 and was
appointed as director and general manager in 2004. He held that position
until he left such company in September 2006.

Mr. Sze Wai Lun (FE{Ef®) (“Mr. Sze”), aged 37, joined the Group in
September 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016. Mr.
Sze was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017.
He is primarily responsible for the overall management of IT development
of the Group.

Mr. Sze graduated from Giriffith University, Australia, with a Bachelor of
Commerce in December 2006, and a Diploma of Commerce from
Queensland Institute of Business and Technology (currently known as
Griffith College), Australia, in February 2003. He has also obtained a
Diploma in SME Company Operation & Management from Hong Kong
Productivity Council in September 2014, a Certificate of Data Centre
Operation and Maintenance Engineers Course from Hong Kong
Productivity Council in February 2015 and a Certificate of CGEIT (Certified
in the Governance of Enterprise IT) from Hong Kong Productivity Council
in May 2015.
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Directors and Senior Management

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Sze was employed by Citicorp International
Limited, being a company which provides banking and financial services
as a securities operations professional in the securities operations
department of the operations and technology group in April 2007. He
held that position until he left such company in August 2007.

Mr. Sze is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui, the chairperson of the
Company and an executive Director, and the brother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei,
an executive Director.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (RIEK) (‘Mr. Yuen”), M.H., aged 72,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February
2017. He is also the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yuen graduated with a Master of Science in Interdisciplinary Design
and Management from The University of Hong Kong in November 2013.
He is an Eminent fellow member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors, fellow member of Chartered Institute of Housing, fellow
member of the HK Institute of Housing and a member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. He has more than 30 years of real estate
experience from both public and private sectors.

Mr. Yuen was the ex-chairman of the Industry Training Advisory
Committee (property management) of the Education Bureau, past
chairman of the Real Estate Service Training Board, ex-committee
member of the Employee Retraining Board, ex-member of the Land and
Building Advisory Committee, past chairman of the Chartered Institute of
Housing (HK branch), past president of the HK Association of Property
Management Companies and past president of the HK Institute of Real
Estate Administrators. Mr. Yuen has retired from the office of executive
director of a real estate investment fund and has been appointed as its
non-executive chairman since June 2017. Mr. Yuen served as a non-
executive director and chairman of the board of Affluent Partners
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1466), the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from February 2018 to October
2019. He has also served as an independent non-executive director of
each of Real Nutriceutical Group Limited (stock code: 2010) and Li Bao
Ge Group Ltd. (stock code: 1869) since January 2019 and January 2020
respectively, the shares of both companies are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Chung Koon Yan (2 EH) (“Mr. Chung”), aged 56, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017. He is
also the chairperson of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Chung graduated with a Master of Professional Accounting from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Hong Kong in November 2000. He is
a practicing member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chung is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales since February 2007 and November
2014 respectively. He is also a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Chung is currently a director of Chiu, Choy & Chung CPA Ltd. and
has more than 20 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and taxation.
Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of Asian
Citrus Holdings Limited (stock code: 73), the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and were admitted to trading
on AIM (a market operated by the London Stock Exchange) in 2005 but
which have been cancelled from trading on AIM since 29 March 2017, an
independent non-executive director of Synergy Group Holdings
International Ltd. (stock code: 1539), the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and an independent non-
executive director of Great World Company Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8003), the shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung (5 Ei&) (‘Mr. Ma”), aged 60, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017. He is also
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Ma is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. He graduated from the
Australian National University, Australia with a Bachelor Degree in Arts in
1983 and a Bachelor Degree in Laws in 1984. He was admitted to the
High Court of Hong Kong in July 1987 and is also a qualified lawyer in
both state and federal courts in Australia. Mr. Ma is currently a partner of
Chiu & Partners and his main practice area is securities, banking and
commercial law.
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Mr. Wong Yat Sum (& — ) (“Mr. Wong”), aged 43, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017. He is also
a member of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Wong obtained a Special Degree of Bachelor of Science in
Accounting from The University of Hull in the United Kingdom in July
2000. He has been a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since October 2014 and The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants since August 2013.

Mr. Wong has over 18 years of auditing, accounting and financial
management experience. He worked for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from
September 2000 to October 2007. From November 2007 to November
2009, Mr. Wong worked for a private wood flooring company as a
financial controller in Shanghai, China. He was the chief financial officer of
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
December 2009 to October 2019 and was its company secretary and
authorised representative from January 2010 to October 2019.

Mr. Chan Chun Sing (B #z%) (“Mr. Chan”), aged 40, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 21 February
2017. He is also a member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Chan has over 17 years of experience in the fields of accounting and
auditing matters of listed companies in Hong Kong. He obtained a
bachelor’'s degree of arts in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2001. In November 2015, Mr. Chan obtained an
executive master of business administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has been a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors since March 2013. Mr. Chan worked for Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu from September 2001 to July 2011 and his last
position held was senior manager in the audit department.

Mr. Chan joined a private company as chief financial officer from July
2013 to February 2014 and was appointed as executive director from
March 2014 to April 2015 and was designated as non-executive director
from May 2015 to March 2017. He has served as an independent non-
executive director of Lai Si Enterprise Holding Limited (whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2266) since
January 2017 and an executive director and company secretary of Janco
Holdings Limited (whose shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 8035) since October 2019. He has also been
appointed as the chief financial officer and the company secretary of Lap
Kei Engineering (Holdings) Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1690) since February 2015
and January 2018 respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung Chi Kong (&) (‘Mr. Leung”), aged 57, is the senior
manager — Operations & Development of the Group. He is primarily
responsible for the overall management of sites operations of the Group.
Mr. Leung has over 35 years of experiences in the environmental hygiene
services industry in Hong Kong. He was employed by Reliance Services
Company Limited (currently known as ISS Facility Services Limited),
being a company engaging in the provision of environmental hygiene
related services, as an assistant foreman. He left such company in
February 2001 and the last position held was site manager. Mr. Leung
then joined Best Result Cleaning Services Ltd. (currently known as Best
Result Environmental Services Limited), being a company engaging in the
provision of cleaning services, where he worked as assistant operations
manager in February 2001 and was subsequently promoted to operation
manager in October 2004, where he held such position until he left the
company in September 2006 and joined the Group in February 2007.

Mr. Leung has obtained a Certificate Programme on Supervisory
Management from The Hong Kong Management Association in March
2000 and he was awarded a Training Certificate on Safety for Cleansing
Work (managers and supervisors) by the Occupational Safety & Health
Council in December 2009. Mr. Leung also obtained an Aluminum Mobile
Working Platform Training Certificate issued by Origin Production Limited
trading as The Hong Kong Safety Training Association in July 2004 and
held a Construction Industry Safety Training Certificate from June 2004
to June 2007.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chow Kai Chi (BR%E) (“Mr. Chow”), aged 51, is the senior finance
manager of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the financial
reporting, financial planning, treasury, financial control matters of the
Group. Mr. Chow obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Business Accounting in
September 1999 from the University of Lincolnshire & Humberside
(currently known as the University of Lincoln), the United Kingdom by
long distance learning. He is currently a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and was admitted as a member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in October 2001.

Mr. Chow has over 28 years of experience in accounting and finance
industry in Hong Kong. He was employed as a clerk in the finance
department by Nanyang Brothers Tobacco Co., Ltd, a tobacco
manufacturer in June 1988. He was promoted to senior clerk in January
1991 and held that position until he left in August 1991. Mr. Chow then
joined Yue Po Engineering Co., Ltd, being a company that provides
kitchen design services and supplies catering equipment as senior clerk
in the accounting department in March 1992 and was promoted to
account officer in October 1992, in which position he remained until he
left such company in March 1995. He then joined Siu Wor Trading Co.
Ltd, being a company engaging in jewellery trading related business as
an accountant in April 1995 and left the company in January 1998. Mr.
Chow subsequently joined Trans Asia Computer Superstore Ltd., being a
company engaging in sales of computer related equipment as an
accountant from June 1998 to August 1999. He then worked as a senior
accountant in Hung Mau Realty & Construction Ltd, being a company
engaging in the provision of general construction works from November
1999 to July 2002. From July 2002 to April 2005, Mr. Chow worked as
an accountant at Broadway Photo Supply Ltd, then being an exporter of
camera and photographic equipment. He then worked as an accountant
in Suga Electronics Limited, being a company providing advanced
electronics manufacturing services, from May 2005 to August 2005 and
joined the Group in November 2005.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business of the Group is provision of environmental hygiene
and related services and airline catering support services in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group’s business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and
likely future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout
this annual report and in particular under the following separate sections:

(@ review of the Company’s business and financial position, and
development and future prospects of the Company’s business are
shown in the “Chairperson’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report;

(b)  the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are shown in
the section headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” below;

(c) the Group’s environmental policies and performance are shown in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual
report and the section headed “Environmental Policies and
Performance” below;

(d) the Group’s key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers are shown in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report and the section headed “Relationships
with Key Stakeholders” below;

(e) the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations are
shown in the section headed “Compliance with Laws and
Regulations” below and the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report;

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED KIEIZERREFHEER A A

EEMARE
Hmaﬁif

HRE R AKEE Z20206F3
EEBIZEAMBRE -

TEXR®

AEBZEITEZXEBAERBRHBEREAE
K A8 B8 R 7% K i 22 B AR SUHR R 7% -

B O

AEREX LERUTEES BHAE
BEBRRLEHEFBEARNEANERER
ENFHEAURAEEZGNER IR
K] BEAT &

@ BEARAMEBRUBMAMR kA
RAFEBOERE AR SHRAEF
BIEFEREIREEE T iwm Lo

b) AEEMEERSETEZE R R THEE %S
RTXEERR N AHEEMN]—

© AEEOERBREREBHALER
R R REAREIRTXES
RERKS]— 6

O AKEEEE FEFPFAHEEANEZZ
BAEERAFRRE HERERY
FIRTNRETERDIHAAZER]
—

@ ANEEESTHBEAMMERNBRE
RTXEFTEPRER] — B RAEF
BIRE HERERRE]:



() details of key performance indicators are shown in the “Financial
Highlights” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report; and

(g Significant event that have an effect on the Group subsequent to
the year ended 31 March 2020 are shown in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of operations and
growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties directly or
indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The risk factors set out
below are those that could result in the Group’s businesses, financial
conditions, results of operations or growth prospects differing materially
from expected or historical results. Such factors are by no means
exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be other risks in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which may not
be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Strategic Risks

The competition in the environmental hygiene and related services market
is intense due to low barriers of entries.

The Group continuously reviews its competitive edges in view of the
industry and will continue to strengthen its established position in the
environmental hygiene and related services industry by (i) ensuring service
quality by providing training to employees; (i) arranging sufficient workers
to complete tasks with supervision; and (i) enhancing customer
satisfaction by responding to customers’ feedback.

Operational Risks

Being labour intensive industry, difficulties in recruiting new workers may
lead to lack of capacity to obtain new projects which in turn result in
losing market shares and competitiveness.

In response to the high labour turnover risks, (i) staff welfare committee is
set up by the Group to provide proper channels for quality communication
between employees and management; (i) exit interview is conducted by
the human resources department with leaving staff; (jii) budget (including
manpower budget) is prepared for every projects; and (iv) third party
service providers are engaged to ensure sufficient manpower.
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Increase in the statutory minimum wage may lead to high labour cost and
reduce in profitability. Nevertheless, the management has remained
resolute in controlling labour and other costs so as to maintain the
Group’s competitiveness and bolster its market position. Certain
measures are adopted to monitor costs, for example, increase salaries of
front-line staff in accordance with the statutory minimum wage rate
adjustment, prepare budget on a project basis based on experience of
senior management, closely monitor the progress and quality of projects
to prevent cost overrun, and establish approval procedure for incurring
additional costs to accommodate for situations when additional
expenditures are required.

Uncertainties of tender contracts is also principal risk facing by the
Group. A majority of the Group’s service contracts are under tendering
which have fixed service terms that range from one to three years,
contributing significant amount of the Group’s revenue. Since the
tendering process is very competitive, it is uncertain that whether the
customer will award new contracts or renew the existing contracts with
the Group. To response to the above risk, the Group has established a
relatively broad customer base ranging from various government
departments in Hong Kong and subsidiaries of multi-national companies
to tenants of various premises. Besides, the Group has been putting
effort to build positive market reputation and develop long-term
relationship with customers.

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, lockdown of cities and travel
restrictions imposed by many countries have significantly reduced the
number of air traffic. To minimize the impact from the outbreak of
COVID-19, the Group has promptly put cost management measures in
place. Human resources arrangements such as layoff and introduction of
no pay leave to employees are implemented to reduce the operating
expenditures. The Group will continue monitoring the situation carefully
and proactively respond to the development of the pandemic. Given that
these customers from the airline catering support business only
accounted for a relatively small portion of the Group’s revenue, it is
expected that there will not have a material adverse impact to the
business overall.
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Compliance Risks

The Group is exposed to litigation claims including employees’
compensation claims and common law personal injury claims and
insurance coverage may not adequately protect the Group against
certain risks. Through close monitoring of various legal and regulatory
pronouncements from the government by its legal and compliance
personnel, the Group is able to keep itself updated with various regulatory
requirements and complies with local labour laws and regulations such
as the Employment Ordinance and Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance. A comprehensive work safety management and supervision
system is also established for enhancing safety performance. In addition,
the management will review the insurance coverage on an ongoing basis.

Financial Risks

Please also refer to note 30 to the financial statements for the financial
risks facing by the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Employees

The Company treats human resources as the Group’s valuable assets.
Training and retaining good employees are always at top priorities.

Besides on-the-job trainings and funding for continuous learning, two
committees are set up to ensure good physical and psychological health
of our staffs. Workshops are held regularly to raise staff's awareness of
occupational health and safety. The risk-free working environment is
guaranteed by the certification of OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health
and Safety Management System. In addition, the Company also
organizes a range of recreational activities so as to foster team spirit.

Customers

Keeping strong relationship with the customers is critical to maintain the
competitiveness of the Group.
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For servicing industry with human as the main concern, it is vital to have
an independent, comprehensive quality assurance mechanism in order to
maintain high level of service, in which rule-of-man style and subjectivity
in the old days can be eliminated. In view of this, the Company has
established an evaluation mechanism with mutual assessment by internal
and external teams of professionals audits. In order to achieve a set
standard of service and customers’ satisfaction, the work is monitored
and reviewed in various aspects including provision of resources, training,
infrastructure and working environment, with customers’ expectation as
the foundation. For services that are not up to high standard, remedial
action will be advised and implemented with continuous improvement
follow through. Also, preventive measure will be formulated as future
guidelines.

Suppliers and Sub-contractors

The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers and sub-contractors
which are selected with reference to, among other things, material/
service quality, reliability and price. The Group performs annual evaluation
on the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors with respect to raw
materials/service quality, reliability and timely delivery.

Further discussions on the relationship with key stakeholders is set out in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has been putting unremitting efforts in environmental
protection by introducing sustainable machineries, devices and
equipment for operation.

The Group’s Environmental Protection Committee (EPC) maintains close
collaborations with green groups and chambers of commerce to promote
the concept of sustainable development. The Group’s determination is
marked by the ISO 14001 Environmental Management System
accreditation obtained in 2001.

Further discussions on the environmental policies is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board was unware of any non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

Further discussion on the Group’s compliance with laws and regulations
is contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published financial results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020, together with
the financial results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
four years ended 31 March 2019, is set out on page 180 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 and the state
of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 95 to 99 of this annual report. The Board does not
recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 11
August 2020 (the “2020 AGM”), the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Thursday, 6 August 2020 to Tuesday, 11 August
2020, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM,
all transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s)
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 5 August 2020.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 March 2020, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$6,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary Shares was
600,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

There was no movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 97 of this annual report and note
24 1o the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to the Shareholders amounted to HK$48.6 million.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to allow
Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profit and for the Company
to retain adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Company would consider various factors
including but not limited to the Group’s overall results of operation,
financial condition, working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements, liquidity position, future expansion plans, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group. Any declaration and payment as
well as the amount of the dividends will be subject to any restrictions
under the applicable laws and regulations and the Company’s
constitutional documents. The Company does not have any
predetermined dividend distribution proportion or distribution ratio. Any
future declarations of dividends may or may not reflect the Company’s
historical declarations of dividends and will be at the absolute discretion
of the Directors.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or
cancel the dividend policy at any time, and the dividend policy shall in no
way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date
of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung

Mr. Wong Yat Sum

Mr. Chan Chun Sing

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, Madam Ng Sing Mui,
Ms. Sze Tan Nei and Mr. Ang Ming Wah will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the 2020 AGM.

The Company has renewed the service contract with each of the
executive Directors for a term of three years commencing on 16 March
2020 unless terminated by not less than three months prior written notice
served by either party on the other or otherwise in accordance with the
terms of the service contract. The Company has also renewed the letter
of appointment with each of the independent non-executive Directors for
a term of two years commencing on 16 March 2020 unless terminated
by not less than three months prior written notice served by either party
on the other or otherwise in accordance with the terms of the letter of
appointment. Each of such appointments is subject to the rotation and
retirement provisions in the articles of association of the Company. Each
of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meetings of the Company pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company.

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM
has any service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 60 to 67 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined under
Rule 18.25 of the GEM Listing Rules) to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is or was a party, and in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director, or the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at 31 March 2020 or at any time during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed at 31 March 2020 or at any time during the year ended 31
March 2020.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” below,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of
this annual report was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices; provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said
persons.

Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

%%&EH&H&%E’%%%’\JZ

m

RARSKEMENE AR KR RK B QA
MELETNESRIMNRETEHEEZ
EE AR A K EH B AR ER
RE(EH RGEM TR BI) & # sk M & #
BEAEZF HR2020FE3A31H &=
2020F3H31HIEFEEMKEBIDARK
ZERRSG  THHEH(EEAGEM L™
RBIFE18.25(%) °

BEEEN

M2020%F 3 H31 H = & £2020F3 A31 8 1k
FELEMNER BEIJLSIGFEEBRAR
AIEEEMERE D EZB 2 EERITR
ZEH

ESWBRODES 2EF

BRSO RERRAERT 8 — BT EEE AN R
B E2020F3A3 IHIEFEREEAF R
BEAEAER RARSEMENRBA
AINFARM B AR ERT LERLH - F
EENHEBBARBREAQARNEME
A N B RS 1D S B 5 M AR ES o

BEFFRERX

ARRERAAREHEMELEZHEES
SREEBRO ERFDLHEED
ExheABEAEIRRE -

REARNFAZERMAY  SEFHAH
HITHEZEMNBERBEERSHEFEL
BAEMNEREATERMBRARZNMAE
A BR WE BX BELKREXMRK
ARARMBERGNTFESRAE BR2
XBRE HARERIIGCHEEME
EAERALTRFLAIEEHENER -

Annual Report 2020 20205 &£

77



78

Report of the Directors

EEERE

Save for the above, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2020 and
up to the date of this annual report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) being in
force for the benefit at any of the Directors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or any of the directors of an associated company
(if made by the Company).

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements. The Remuneration Committee will review and recommend
the Board the remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors
and senior management with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities, contribution, and time devoted to the Group and the
overall performance of the Group.

The Directors and senior management may also be granted options
under the share option scheme of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed on 21
February 2017, the principal terms of the pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were approved and adopted. The
purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to aid the Company in
retaining key and senior employee of the Group. Principal terms of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were set out in the Prospectus and note
25 to the financial statements. An aggregate of 192,000 share options at
an exercise price of HK$0.42 per Share, being the offer price under the
share offer, were granted on 23 February 2017 to an executive Director
and certain employees of the Group. No further options will be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme are as follows:

REE
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Number of Shares (Note 1)

BRAEA (M)
Exercise
Outstanding Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding Price per
Category of as at 1 April during the during the during the as at 31 Share
participants 2019 year year year March2020 Option Exercisable Period
K20195 20205
4818 RER RER RER 3A31H BHER
SHEEES xTE EBOE ot RE RTE EOEE TEA
Director
EF
Ang Ming Wah 64,000 = = = 64,000 HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
(Note 2)
B E 64,000 - - - 64,000 0.42/&7T 201743R16HE2027F3A15H
(Fi3E2)
Sub-total 64,000 = = = 64,000
gt 64,000 = = = 64,000
4 Employees in 104,000 — — - 104,000 HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
aggregate (Note 2)
ARAIZEER 104,000 - - - 104,000 04277 201763 A16H 22027437151
(M &E2)
1 Employee 24,000 — — (24,000 — HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to 17 December 2019
(Note 3)
1%EE 24,000 - - (24,000) — 04287 2017%F3H16HZE2019512A17H
GEX)
Sub-total 128,000 — — (24,000) 104,000
gt 128,000 — — (24,000) 104,000
Total 192,000 - —  (24,000) 168,000
@st 192,000 - =  (24,000) 168,000
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Notes:

Number of Shares over which options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is exercisable.

All holders of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may only
exercise their options in the following manner:

() 50% of the options granted are exercisable during the period from 16
March 2017 to 15 March 2027; and

(b) the remaining 50% of the options granted are exercisable during the
period from 16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027.

In accordance with the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the legal
personal representative(s) of this employee may exercise the options granted to
him under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme within the period of 12 months
following his death.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved by a resolution of the sole Shareholder
passed on 21 February 2017. No options under the Share Option
Scheme has been granted since its adoption.

Summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as
follow:

(a)

(b)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
substantial shareholders, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of the
Group and to promote the success of the business of the Group.

Participant of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant, adviser, substantial shareholder, distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider of
the Group, options to subscribe at a price calculated in accordance
with paragraph (c) below for such number of Shares as it may
determine in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be
at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the option, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (i) the nominal value of Share
on the date of grant of the option.

Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Maximum number of Shares of the Company
available for issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 60,000,000 Shares, represent 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years commencing on 21 February 2017, subject to early
termination provisions contained in the Share Option Scheme.

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2020, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were
as follows:

() Long position in the Shares

ESREFBRTHAERAR
7] =% 1F {7 48 B 0% Z VI
EROREZ2BEER XA

M2020F3A31R ' BEERARAEETH
ABRARE S EEMEEEE(EERF

H REEGRBIEXVER) 2 & - BER G R
BEFFHEARBEFRAEKROIEXVEBET
K845 BB &N & AN A A) K Bk A2 Pt 2 #E 2 3O
E(EEEEREEF LBEKRL 2 ZE K
NEEEREREFZERIOKR) IR
BEESKBAEEG FEI2REELRZIEX
Frr st & 50 A 3 AR #R GEM = 0 3 Rl 55.46
& =5.67 5 ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ: HFRGZHRTE
AHEgAR GRPTZERSBAB T

) RERGOWEFE

Number of
Shares/  Approximate
underlying percentage
shares held/ of interest in
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest interested in  the Company
iy ®E
BEWRG EERAFER
ESpE B EENtE HEROGBE HWHIEIL
Ng Sing Mui Interest of a controlled corporation; Settlor of 432,000,000 72.00%
a discretionary trust (Note 1)
RIEN R LR 2REAMETE A1) 432,000,000 72.00%
Sze Tan Nei Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 2) 432,000,000 72.00%
e STk EREEEXEA(WE2) 432,000,000 72.00%
Sze Wai Lun Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 3) 432,000,000 72.00%
jts 12 f@ 2HEETERE A (MES) 432,000,000 72.00%
Ang Ming Wah Beneficial owner (Note 4) 64,000 0.01%
HLEREE BB A (MiE4) 64,000 0.01%
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() Long position in the ordinary shares of
associated corporations

()
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Number of
Name of associated Capacity/ shares held/ Percentage
Name of Director corporation nature of interest interested in of interest
B A
s R
EEnR HEEEER B EatE R4 # A Bok
Ng Sing Mui Sze’s Holdings Limited  Interest of a controlled corporation; 1 100%
Settlor of a discretionary trust
REENS MEERERARA A RiELEER RREERAVME 1 100%
FEA
Rich Cheer Beneficial owner 1 100%
Development Limited
SHRERARAA EnfEBA 1 100%
Sze Tan Nei Sze’s Holdings Limited  Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 1 100%
iR MEERERAER A F 2HREAXEA 1 100%
Sze Wai Lun Sze’s Holdings Limited  Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 1 100%
iAo MR AR A A PREFEEHEA 1 100%
Notes: it &E -

All the 432,000,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings
Limited, which is in turn held by Rich Cheer Development Limited acting
as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust is a
discretionary trust set up by Madam Ng Sing Mui as settlor and Rich
Cheer Development Limited as trustee on 8 January 2015. The
beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun
and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. Madam Ng Sing Mui is the settlor of the Sze Family
Trust and the sole director of Sze’s Holdings Limited and therefore
Madam Ng Sing Mui is deemed or taken to be interested in all the
432,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the
purposes of the SFO. Madam Ng Sing Mui is also the sole director and
shareholder of Rich Cheer Development Limited.

FIT % 432,000,000 0% A% 1% 9 B 5 K 1% % B R
RAEmER MEKZERBRARSHZH
ERARAF(AERKREGELHILA)#E
B-HBMRRGKEXTARBEL T (EAME
BANREHEREBARNMEAZTA)R
20151 ASAR U MEHEEL HEERERE
THZHABREEHSPBRE) BERBILTEMNE
Bzt RBELLHAERREETHY
EXBARERKIERBRARNE —ES -
Bt REBFHFRHAEKRG  REBZTHE
AREERERERERARESHEAN
7 432,000,000/% & o R HE B = - REEIE &
THRALHERERDANE—ESMBRE -
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2. Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Ms. Sze Tan Nei
is one of the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore she is
deemed or taken to be interested in all the 432,000,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

3. Mr. Sze Wai Lun is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Mr. Sze Wai Lun is
one of the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore he is
deemed and taken to be interested in all the 432,000,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

4, Mr. Ang Ming Wah is interested in 64,000 Shares which may be allotted
and issued to him upon full exercise of all options granted to him under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company nor their associates had any interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard
of dealings by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing
Rules as at 31 March 2020.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’/OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2020, the following persons (other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:
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R2020F3A31H M TALE(BEERAR
AIEZITBABRIN R R AR () 218 78
O EEELEZRNBEES RBAEKRE
BB AFENELMPOEIRS AR

Long position in the Shares RN ETFE
Number of Percentage of
Shares held/ interest in
Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest interested in  the Company
¥ %A HARRAF
R EHH
RER & BB REaMtE ik =] Bok
Sze’s Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 432,000,000 72%
e KERABR A A EREBA 432,000,000 2%

Rich Cheer Development Limited Interest of controlled corporation as the trustee of

the Sze Family Trust (Note) 432,000,000 72%
EHERARAA REmEEER  ERBRRKEELXFTEA () 432,000,000 72%

Note: The entire issued share capital of Sze’s Holdings Limited is held by Rich Cheer
Development Limited as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust
is a discretionary trust established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The beneficiaries of
the Sze Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. By
virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Rich Cheer Development Limited is
deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares beneficially owned by Sze’s
Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Directors were not
aware that there was any person (not being a Director or chief executive
of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and was recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1)
OF THE LISTING RULES

The Company has renewed the letter of appointment with each of the
independent non-executive Directors for a term of two years commencing
on 16 March 2020 unless terminated by not less than three months prior
written notice served by either party on the other or otherwise in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, each of Sze’s Holdings Limited, Rich
Cheer Development Limited, Madam Ng Sing Mui, Ms. Sze Tan Nei and
Mr. Sze Wai Lun (“Controlling Shareholders”) have entered into the deed
of non-competition undertakings (“Deed of Non-competition
Undertakings”) in favour of the Company (for its own and on behalf of all
members of the Group) on 23 February 2017, pursuant to which each of
the Controlling Shareholders, irrevocably and unconditionally, undertakes
and covenants with the Company that during the period that the Deed of
Non-competition Undertakings remains effective, each of the Controlling
Shareholders shall not, and shall procure that none of his/her/its
associates (except any member of the Group), directly or indirectly (other
than through the Group) engage, participate or hold any right or interest
in or render any services to or otherwise be involved, whether as a
shareholder, director, employee, partner, agent or otherwise (as the case
may be), in any business in competition with or likely to be in competition
with the Group’s existing business activity and any business activities
which may be undertaken by the Group from time to time and/or which
any member of the Group may undertake in Hong Kong from time to
time. Details of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings have been set
out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders —
Deed of Non-competition Undertakings” in the Prospectus.

The Company has received the annual declaration from each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their respective compliance with
the terms of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during the year
ended 31 March 2020. The independent non-executive Directors, having
reviewed the annual declarations and made reasonable enquiry, were
satisfied that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the terms
of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during the year ended 31
March 2020.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS OR
SUB-CONTRACTORS

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the percentages of (i) revenue
attributable to the Group’s major customers; and (i) cost of services
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers or sub-contractors are set out
below:
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BEEMREKANE D LEFIDAT

Approximate percentage
of the Group’s

HEAEENBEABE D
Cost of
Revenue Services
I B 7% BX 2%
The largest customer SN S 33.3% —
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEE 61.2% =
The largest supplier or sub-contractor SARERSISBEE — 23.9%
Five largest suppliers or sub-contractors in aggregate i KL ER = D B 754 5 = 31.1%

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
number of issued Shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers, five largest suppliers and subcontractors noted above.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or applicable laws of the Cayman lIslands where the
Company is incorporated.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 March 2020, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

MEEETXARENTAETREAREM
BERLEEMAAEFEBDSETRNK
BHS5%) RAKREN LM AKREP AARH
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COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors
nor the Controling Shareholders nor any of their respective close
associates that compete or may compete with the business of the Group
and any other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may
have with the Group during the year ended 31 March 2020.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had not entered into
any connected transactions or continuing connected transactions that
are not exempted under Rule 20.71 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules or
the Listing Rules* throughout the year ended 31 March 2020 and has
continued to maintain such float as at the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

There has been no change in auditor in the preceding three years. The
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 have been
audited by BDO Limited, who will retire, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the 2020 AGM. A resolution will be proposed at the
2020 AGM to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson and Executive Director

19 June 2020

* The GEM Listing Rules was applicable to the Company prior to the Transfer of
Listing. Immediately after the Transfer of Listing, the Listing Rules shall be
applicable to the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

a5 - +852 2218 8288
{EH : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 95 to 179, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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B M % B S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 4.8 and note
7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Service income from provision of environmental hygiene and related
services and airline catering support services is recognised when the
services are rendered. We have identified recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of
the Group and there is an inherent risk over the recognition of revenue by
the management to meet specific targets or expectations.

Our response:

Our audit procedures to address the revenue recognition included the
following:

° evaluating the appropriateness of the recognition policy with
reference to the relevant accounting standard;

° inspecting, on sample basis, customer contracts to identify terms
and conditions relating to the provision of services;

° performing substantive analytical procedures to assess whether the
recognised service revenue was in line with the expected level;

° inspecting service income recognised during the year, on sample
basis, and comparing details of the service income being
recognised with relevant the underlying documentation, including
service contracts, service records and invoices; and

° assessing, on a sample basis, the service income recorded before
and after the financial year end date with the relevant underlying
documentation, including service contracts and service records, to
verify whether the service income had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED XK|EEREBERAT
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED XK|EEREBERAT
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° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lui Chi Kin

Practising Certificate Number PO6162

Hong Kong, 19 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement Comprehensive Income ==

e 2 ERER

For the yéanended 31 March 2020 & £ 202043 A 31 H 1E F &

2020 2019
20204 20194F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5% FHExT FH& T
Revenue & 7 569,559 537,324
Cost of services Bk 75 X A< (485,854) (457,769)
Gross profit | 83,705 79,555
Other income and gains N NS 7 571 740
General operating expenses —MREER X (57,758) (53,794)
Finance costs & A 8 (369) (482)
Profit before income tax R T 18 4 A1 % F 9 26,149 26,019
Income tax expense FriSfif X 10 (5,447) (6,177)

Profit for the year and total comprehensive  F RZE R R XA TAEE A
income for the year attributable to owners EhtFR2ERRELE

of the Company 20,702 20,842
Earnings per share BREF 13

— Basic — EK HKS3.45 cents HK3.47 cents

b= Bl

— Diluted — s HK3.45 cents HK3.47 cents

b= Bl
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s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB AR O 3R

Asat31March2020 202043 A31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mo sE FHExT FBT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE k&K 14 34,646 36,001
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 8 1% 279 14
Trade receivables B 5 EW I8 16 124,503 114,497
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TE{ 218 - £ & & E it
J& Us R IE 17 7,719 7,263
Tax recoverable Al Y [ 7 18 36 67
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIRESEEY 40,469 33,844
173,006 155,685
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B ENZE 18 14,737 14,710
Accruals, deposits and other payables EstEA - me REM
JE {5 FRIE 18 33,995 30,069
Lease liabilities HEAE 19 1,321 —
Bank borrowings RITE K 20 7,431 9,364
Tax payable FE B 1B 1,512 1,614
58,996 55,757
Net current assets REBEESEHE 114,010 99,928
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABERS 148,656 135,929
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAR 19 455 —
Provision for long service payments KRR € BE 21 12,234 10,480
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBAE 22 1,094 1,258
13,783 11,738
Net assets BEE 134,873 124,191
EQUITY =
Share capital & 7 23 6,000 6,000
Reserves ER 128,873 118,191
Total equity A 134,873 124,191

The consolidated financial statements on pages 95 to 179 were approved  F 958 £ F179E FIEH 2 G5 B REE R
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 June 2020 and 202046 A 19 A JE = & & #t f K 5% 7 FI| 2%

are signed on its behalf by: VT EEAEEE

Ng Sing Mui Sze Tan Nei
REN e 5
Director Director

EF =

926 WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED X|EZEREEERAT



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity m—

GEREZEFFR

Forthe y8anended 31 March 2020 £ & 202043 A 31 H IF F &

Share
Share Share Merger option Retained
capital premium* reserve* reserve* profits* Total
i iR
BA& R4 EE &OHE R RERA* et
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKE000
FATT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 31 March 2018 as 7A20184F3 A31H
originally presented BRESLZE 6,000 48,177 20,917 34 38,312 113,440
Effect of adjustmenton A BB Bk S
adoption of HKFRS 9 7E Bl 25 9 5% 19
AEye - - - - 7 a
Restated balances at R2018F 4 A1H
1 April 2018 R E B kE 6,000 48,177 20,917 34 38,241 113,369
Final dividend paid A RERR S = = = — (10,020)  (10,020)
Profit for the year and total 4E /A 3 | & € A
comprehensive income 2 @ Y5 B 58
for the year — — — — 20,842 20,842
At 31 March 2019 and 201943 H31H
1 April 2019 % 20194818 6,000 48,177 20,917 34 49,063 124,191
Final dividend paid BRI E = = = = (10,020)  (10,020)
Profit for the year and total F A )& 7] & FF
comprehensive income & HE W 4458
for the year — — — — 20,702 20,702
Share options lapsed B 5k 3% BE A% 4 = = = &) 4 —
At 31 March 2020 202053 31 H 6,000 48,177 20,917 30 59,749 134,873
* These reserve balances comprised the reserve account as set out in the * ZEFEFELEBOIEGAVERIREMISEES

consolidated statement of financial position.

o
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mmmm Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

98

GAERETMER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & = 20204 3 A 31t IEF =

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FAET
Cash flows from operating activities KETHEESRE
Profit before income tax BR AT 15 B0 A1 g A 26,149 26,019
Adjustments for: o
Interest income FLEMA 8 ©)
Interest expenses BN 369 482
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE - BENMKEZEIE 5 52
Depreciation e 4,839 5,044
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 W F B R EEE 243 54
Operating profit before working capital changes % & & € % &) Al & & 25 31,597 31,645
Increase in inventories HFEEm (265) 3)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 FE WK TE 18 N (10,249) (14,442)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits and ~ TE{T3IE - £ & K& £ b FE UL
other receivables FRIE (38 ),k (456) 1,665
Increase in trade payables B 5 e FORE N 27 1,920
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, deposits and other B+ & A - 124 & H ith &
payables FIEE I, CR L) 3,926 (426)
Increase in provision for long service payments R HIBR 75 & B 5 18 0 1,754 1,404
Cash generated from operations REMBAE 26,334 21,763
Interest paid 21 F & (316) (482)
Income tax paid B AER (5,682) (5,129)
Net cash generated from operating activites K& ZEHFELHR S TE 20,336 16,156
Cash flows from investing activities RETBEESARE
Interest received 2 F B 8 6
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE BERXE (1,076) (3,617)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFMARESEE (1,068) (3,611)
Cash flows from financing activities METEEESRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE R PATISFKIA 4,960 3,647
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBITENX (6,893) (11,816)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities ZHHEEEENARE IS (637) -
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities YTREEAREMNF IS (53) —
Dividend paid BERRS (10,020) (10,020)
Net cash used in financing activities RMEEEMARSEE (12,643) (18,189

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED XK|EEREBERAT



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
REEESRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAET
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ReRBESEEWEM
equivalents ORD) F8 6,625 (5,644)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FENRENREESEEY
the year 33,844 39,488
Cash and cash equivalents atend oftheyear EXELRHELEZEEY 40,469 33,844
Analysis of balances of cash and cash HeRESEBYER DI
equivalents
Cash and bank balances He RRITE 40,469 33,844

Annual Report 2020 2020%F &£

929



mmmm Notes to the Financial Statements
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B 5 ¥R 3% B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & & 202043 A 318 |E F &

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 31 May 2016 under the Companies Law, Cap. 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares were listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 16
March 2017. On 11 June 2020, the listing of the shares of the
Company have been transferred from GEM to the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. Its principal place of business is Suite 2702, 27th
Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower, No.8 Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company, collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 33.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Sze’s Holdings
Limited (“Sze’s Holdings”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and the entire issued share capital of Sze’s
Holdings is held by Rich Cheer Development Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, as the trustee of a family trust (the “Sze
Family Trust”). The Sze Family Trust is a discretionary trust
established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The beneficiaries of the Sze
Family Trust included, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan
Nei. Rich Cheer Development Limited is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the shares beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new standards and amendments issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”),
which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 April 2019.

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
2015-2017 Cycle Combinations

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs ~ Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
2015-2017 Cycle Taxes

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing
2015-2017 Cycle Costs

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new/revised
HKFRSs has no material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; £ 202043 A 31 H IFE &

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (“HKFRS 16”)

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in accounting treatment
for lease accounting, primarily for accounting for lessees. It
replaces HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 177), HK(FRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int
27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. From a lessee’s perspective, aimost
all leases are recognised in the statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, with the narrow
exception to this principle for leases which the underlying
assets are of low-value or are determined as short-term
leases. From a lessor’s perspective, the accounting treatment
is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17.

For details of HKFRS 16 regarding its new definition of a
lease, its impact on the Group’s accounting policies and the
transition method adopted by the Group as allowed under
HKFRS 16, please refer to sections (i) to (iv) of this note.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(i)

The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a contract, or
part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an
asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. A contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time when the customer, throughout the period of
use, has both: (a) the right to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the identified asset
and (b) the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease as an
operating lease or a finance lease based on the extent
to which risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a
lease asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. If a lease is
determined as an operating lease, the lessee would
recognise the lease payments under the operating lease
as an expense over the lease term. The asset under the
lease would not be recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the lessee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; £ 202043 A 31 H IFE &

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSS (Continued) 2. KRB RS ZER @
2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued) 21 KAFHET BIETEB
B % 3R & % Bl )
HKFRS 16 (Continued) EBUMKEBREERE165
(#&)
(i) Accounting as a lessee (Continued) (i) ERAEABAZEFEE
(&)
Under HKFRS 16, all leases are required to be B IEE & Hﬁﬁ%i&%ﬁ,ﬁlj%’
capitalised in the consolidated statement of financial 165 FTBEMEEREZS
position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but MR REKE RN EFE ﬁH
HKFRS 16 provides accounting policy choices for an HEENMTHEAG EEB
entity to choose not to capitalise leases which are B &S R E165E 5 E
short-term leases. The Group has elected not to IR e EIRRE &
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for BT KERHHEENE fE\
leases for which at the commencement date have a EITENRE - REEBEEE
lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments A B E 7FE g8
associated with those leases have been expensed on w128 A 2 2 & %R 1% 3]
straight-line basis over the lease term. EEERTHEA®G  H% :—ér
HEHB L HENKE
HEBRNREREL -
The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease AEERHERKE Bi#
liability at the commencement date of a lease. REREEENTEERE -
Right-of-use asset FHAEEE
The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost A& EERKAER
and would comprise: () the amount of the initial T#eE: (HEaEBE2ZY
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the AR (R TITXE@AAE
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any EEEARNSEEE)
lease payments made at or before the commencement (A BBk ZRIEL 2
date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any initial F &~ R D WE 2
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate EREEBRE: (i)yFREAE
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and EZ2EMIBEEKA R
removing the underlying asset to the condition required (v)& A& R D8R &% R
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those HEEEZHSIER LI
costs are incurred to produce inventories. HIREZHRABEEELE 2 A

AR ERERARTIRE
EFEMmELRRI -

104 WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED KIEIZERREFHEER A A



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(i)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a
cost model. Under the cost model, the Group measures
the right-of-use asset at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements
are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
date of commencement of the lease. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group shall use the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; £ 202043 A 31 H IFE &

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(i)

(i)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee shall
measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (i)
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and (i) re-measuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modification.

Accounting as a lessor

As the accounting under HKFRS 16 for a lessor is
substantially unchanged from the requirements under
HKAS 17, the adoption of HKFRS 16 does not have
significant impact on these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; = 202043 A 381 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(iv) Transition
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. The comparative information
presented in 2019 has not been restated and continues
to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations as allowed by the transition provision in
HKFRS 16.

The following reconciliation explains how the operating
lease commitments disclosed applying HKAS 17 as at
31 March 2019 could be reconciled to the lease
liabilities at the date of initial application recognised in

2. KMNEBYKREERD @

21 WPAFET BIBETEB
B 7% 3R 45 %€ Bl ()

ERMBREEAE165

(#&)

(iv) #BIE
REEEF R LIEETE B
FRAERABBYGHREE
A E165% - R 20194 2 3
ZLHBERWEES - W4
BRBEEBGFERE7
RREBAVBRESERNE
1657 2 B F V16 AT A &5
ZHEZREZMW -

LA TR % 8R 55 B9 &L 220194
SH1RERE &g ER
FATHR B 2 KT & &
¥ ER2019F 4 A1H 2 &

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 BB R B R IE E
April 2019: AEHmRANEE A EE
1THBR
HK$’000
FTBT
Operating lease commitments as at R2019F3 A3 T H 2 K&EHE
31 March 2019 HPE 765
Less: short-term leases for which lease terms end on & : 8 & Hi 202043 A 31 H
or before 31 March 2020 RIS RZEHEE (765)

Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019

MR2019F4 1B ZHEEE —
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 3R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z 202043 A 31 B L&

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(iv)

Transition (Continued)

The ownership interests in leasehold land in Hong Kong
held for own use carried at depreciated cost, regarded
as right-of-use assets, has been included in property,
plant and equipment upon adoption of HKFRS 16.

The Group has applied the practical expedient for not
to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases with term that will end within 12 months of the
date of initial application and accounted for those
leases as short-term leases. In addition, the Group has
also applied the practical expedients that HKFRS 16 is
applied to all of the Group’s lease contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group’s current intention is to apply these changes on
the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material'

HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
the other new or revised standards would not result in
significant impact on amounts reported in the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 3R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z 202043 A 31 B L&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance which concern the preparation of financial
statements. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“‘HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$’000”) except otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

4.2

4.3

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-
company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

4. EXEFHEE

4.1

4.2

4.3
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; Z=202043 A31 HIF FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.3 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on the following property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line basis to allocate their
costs less their residual value over their estimated useful lives.
The useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.
The useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease term
Buildings situated on leasehold Over the shorter of
land unexpired term of lease
and the buildings’
eliminated useful lives
Over the shorter of lease
term or useful life

Leasehold improvement

Office furniture and equipment 15-25%
Machinery and equipment 25%
Motor vehicles 25%
Other properties leased for Over the lease term

own use

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’'s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

Eor the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 202043 A 31 H IE F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4. EXEFTHEXR @

Accounting as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy
choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise
leases which are short-term leases. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset
The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost

and would comprise: () the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; £ 202043 A 31 H IFE &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.4 Leasing (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April

2019 (Continued)
Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a
cost model. Under the cost model, the Group measures
the right-of-use asset at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted

for any remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements

are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s

incremental borrowing rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

Eor the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 202043 A 31 H IE F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4. EXETHE@
4.4 Leasing (Continued) 4.4 HE @)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April (A) E2019F4 818 & K&

2019 (Continued)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (i)
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and (i) remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g. a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; £ 202043 A 31 H IFE &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.4 Leasing (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April

2019 (Continued)
Accounting as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease

term.

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 March

2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease

term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental

expense, over the term of the lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

Eor the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 202043 A 31 H IE F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.5 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

4.6 Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; Z=202043 A31 HIF FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The
following are the measurement category into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables and financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The ECL are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12
months ECL: these are the ECL that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECL: these are ECL that
result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECL is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

Eor the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 202043 A 31 H IE F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECL based on lifetime ECL. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

For other financial assets at amortised cost, the ECL
are based on the 12 months ECL. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime
ECL. When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; Z=202043 A31 HIF FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30

days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days

past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying

amount.

(iii) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured at fair value, net

of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
payables, accruals, deposits and other payables and
bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset
has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represented cash and bank balances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; Z=202043 A31 HIF FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.8 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be enttled in exchange for those goods or
services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the customer obtains control of the
goods or service.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

Eor the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 202043 A 31 H IE F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.8 Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i) Service income is recognised in the accounting period
in which the services are rendered. For the service
contract relates to routine services, the service income
will be recognised on a straight-line basis over the
contract terms as the work is performed. For services
that are provided on ad-hoc basis, service income is
recognised upon completion of the provision of such
ad-hoc services.

(i) Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

(i)  Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

(iv)  Income from sales of goods is recognised at point in
time when the goods are delivered to customers and
title has passed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; Z=202043 A31 HIF FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.8

4.9

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the customers retain
retention money to secure the due performance of the
contracts. Any amount previously recognised as a contract
asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which
it is invoiced to the customer. If the considerations (including
advances received from customers) exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the output method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

Eor the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 202043 A 31 H IE F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4. EXEFTHEXR @

4.9 FTEH @)

4.9 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for recognised assets and
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in
net if, and only if,
(@ the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the

recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; £ 202043 A 31 H IFE &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Income taxes (Continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

@)

the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

410 Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED XK|EEREBERAT

4. EXEFTHEXR @

4.9 FTBH @)

REBERKERIATIERAFEE
2HNEERBEENRELENIER

& :
@ ERBABAXRTEENE
BIHR 7 7R & 2 RD H B IR

BEHHE Rk

b EEREEERELTHA
BEER KRN
TER-HABKZAE
AR R -

) F-ERHEE: X

() FFEIRBBHBMEKK
BARBERERLEHREAR
HEEZEARARBAM
AR EEFE R
MEAEEEEXF
HREREERBESR
B TFERTELE -

410 EEEA

i) BHEERER
MEREBREAEEGRE
ERHEAMRFEFERS
HIRE+ @A ERE
78 HY 1R B 18 A (B B E A Bk
M) - EEIREREAMNER
REBAREFEER -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

Eor the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 202043 A 31 H IE F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods. Liabilities recognised in
respect of long service payment are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. The cost of providing the long service payment
liabilities is charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The long service payment
liabilities are determined by the recent remuneration of
the eligible employees based on the requirement of
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, and is reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the
Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; Z=202043 A31 HIF FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.11 Impairment loss of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and interests in subsidiaries
are subject to impairment testing.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of these assets to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets’ carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

4.12 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require
a substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets is
deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

Eor the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 202043 A 31 H IE F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4. EXEFTHEXR @

413 BERIAREE

4.13 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive as a
result of a past event, which will probably result in an outflow
of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

414 Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions

The fair value of services received is determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant
and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity under the
heading of share option reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in the share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; Z=202043 A31 HIF FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.15 Related parties

(@)

(b)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

U)

(i)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.15 Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; Z=202043 A31 HIF FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.16 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive directors are

determined following the Group’s major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are
the same as those used in its financial statements prepared

under HKFRSs.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ

from these estimates.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year is set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

Eor the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 202043 A 31 H IE F &

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

5.1

5.2

Estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to those previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in note 4.3.
The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates of
the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets.

Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in
which can result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting date
and the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; Z=202043 A31 HIF FE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

5.3

5.4

Provisions

When there is a probability that an outflow of economic
benefits will occur due to a present obligation resulting from a
past event, and that amount is reasonably estimate, a
corresponding amount of provision is recognised in the
financial statements. However, no provision is recognised for
costs that need to be incurred to operate in the future.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognised
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will affect the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
who are the chief operating decision makers for the purpose of
resources allocation and assessment of performance, is the
financial information of the Group as a whole as reported under
HKFRSs. The Group is currently organised into two operating
divisions as follows:

(1)

@

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Environmental hygiene and related services

Airline catering support services
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Bt % R R EE

Eor the year ended 31 March 2020 #; 202043 A 31 H IE F &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.16. For the
purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating
resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating segments other than tax
recoverable and cash and cash equivalents.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
bank borrowings and tax payable.

— all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments other
than directors’ emoluments, finance costs, income tax
expense and certain other income and expenses incurred by
the head office.
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Bt 7% R 3= B &
For the year ended 31 March 2020 & & 2020 3 A 31 Ei FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

7 58 & Fm)
BE2020F3831BLLEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Environmental Airline
hygiene and catering support
related services services Total
REBEHER MmZEER
18 B3 AR 7% T ER® 4ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FH& T FH& T
Revenue W25
Sales to external customers HIINEEFHE
— recognised over time — IR EERER 520,371 33,093 553,464
— recognised at point in time — BB R 16,095 - 16,095
536,466 33,093 569,559
Segment results D EBE LS 38,787 2,313 41,100
Directors’ emoluments EEMe (11,776)
Finance costs B & kAR (316)
Unallocated corporate income and 7k 2 At A & Yg A K&
expenses, net s - 558 (2,859)
Profit before income tax & BT 15 %% B i 26,149
Income tax expense Fr 45 Fi 5 &2 (5,447)
Profit for the year & N g A 20,702
Segment assets DEEE 160,759 6,388 167,147
Tax recoverable A Y 5] B 18 36
Cash and cash equivalents WENIBELEEY 40,469
Total assets BEE 207,652
Segment liabilities DEEE 61,177 2,659 63,836
Bank borrowings H|ITE K 7,431
Tax payable FEH BB 1,512
Total liabilities BEBHE 72,779
Other segment information HttpFHER
Depreciation e (4,839) - (4,839)
Additions to non-current assets IERBE E N 3,489 - 3,489
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Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER @
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE2019F3831BILLEE
Environmental Airline
hygiene and  catering support
related services services Total
RIRHER fin Z= &K
18 B8 AR 75 SRR BET
HK$’'000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Revenue Iz
Sales to external customers HINBEFHE
— recognised over time — LB R ER 485,670 38,553 524,223
— recognised at point in time — R EEER 13,101 — 13,101
498,771 38,553 537,324
Segment results DEEE 36,566 3,431 39,997
Directors’ emoluments EEME (10,193
Finance costs Bl & B AN (482)
Unallocated corporate income and 7 2 Bt /A &) Y2 A & B4
expenses, net X R (3,303)
Profit before income tax [ BT 45 %5 B i 26,019
Income tax expense FBHHAX (6,177)
Profit for the year F 5 F 20,842
Segment assets DEEE 152,463 5,312 157,775
Tax recoverable a] Uy (Bl B 18 67
Cash and cash equivalents B RESZEY 33,844
Total assets BB E 191,686
Segment liabilities DEBEE 54,276 2,241 56,517
Bank borrowings RITIE N 9,364
Tax payable JE 14 % 18 1,614
Total liabilities BERE 67,495
Other segment information HitnHER
Depreciation e (5,044) = (5,044)
Additions to non-current assets IERBEEZ M 3,909 — 3,909
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PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; £ 202043 A 31 H IFE &

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
place of the Group’s operation is in Hong Kong. For the purpose of
segment information disclosures under HKFRS 8, Hong Kong is
regarded as the Group’s place of domicile. All the Group’s revenue
and non-current assets are attributable to Hong Kong for the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, being the single geographical
region.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location at
which the services were provided. All the Group’s revenue from
external customers is sourced from Hong Kong.

Revenue from customers which individually contributed 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue, are set out as follows:

7 EBE R )

ARBBREERAR A5EXZE
KEMMRES - RIBEE BB R
EERESFETOBERBEEMS -
EEWREAREBES  AEEE
22020 N2019F3A31H IEFEH
FTERENIERBEEHRE E—i
BES -

BP0 IR (B DA P IR AR 75 1 ik R AR
B AKREXRBIBEFLWMAA st
BRNEE

BHME R EBUKREZ10%HIA L EF
WaEHFT

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T

Customer A (note 1) EEAMEFED) 189,825 171,100

Customer B (note 2) EFEB(KizE2) 58,634 58,220
Notes: Mt & -

(1) It is a customer for environmental hygiene and related services for the (1) HAE £2020F &2019F3 A31 A IEF

years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

) For the year ended 31 March 2020, revenue of HK$33,095,000 was
generated from environmental hygiene and related services while revenue
of HK$25,539,000 was generated from airline catering support services
for this customer.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, revenue of HK$28,837,000 was
generated from environmental hygiene and related services while revenue
of HK$29,383,000 was generated from airline catering support services
for this customer.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED KIEIZERREFHEER A A

ERREFHERBERBOES

(2 B E2020F3A31H It F E: M=
33,095,000 7T 2K B [ It & F iR it B0 IR
WEAE XA R - M ik 225,589,000
BT RERAERENMEERSTER
7}’%0

#H F2019F3A318 It &£ F: K #F
28,837,000 7T 2R B [ bt & F 1R it B9 IR
EEAERERBRG - M k29,383,000
BILRBRERHEAOMEZERTER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS

Revenue represents the income from environmental hygiene and
related services and airline catering support services rendered.

7. WmRkEMEARKS

WaERHREHE RBBRE AR
MZEERERIGATELOUWA -

(@)  Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue @ TXHEHIAEEFEBREZ WS
from major services. The Group’s revenue recognised within DI - AEBREBMBREE
the scope of HKFRS 15 are as follows: Al &5 B RNEER 2 kI m
I

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Revenue: I 5
Environmental hygiene and related services 3835 &7 4 & M0 F8 AR 75 536,466 498,771
Airline catering support services M ER T IERE 33,093 38,553
569,559 537,324
(b) As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the aggregated amount of (b) 20204 N2019F3 A31H » &

the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts as follows:

EEAEEREANATHRTE
METHRSERBNT

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$’000 HK$’'000

THER FHETT

Expected to be recognised within one year 78 H3 7A — 4 A iE R 334,410 387,546
Expected to be recognised after one year TEHR —FRER 27,497 252,611
361,907 640,157
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B # R M RE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 20204F 3 31 H I F &

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND

7. WEREMEKARIKE @

GAINS (Continued)
(¢)  The Group’s other income and gains recognised during the © AEBRFAERNEMUKAR
year are as follows: W
2020 2019
2020 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FH&T
Other income and gains: H Aol A R U s
Bank interest income RITF B LA 8 6
Sales of scrap materials BE K} EH & 487 665
Rental income L2 WA 76 69
571 740
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WMERK
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THT
Interest on bank borrowings HRITEKFE 316 482
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE 53 —
369 482

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRATS B AT ER
Profit before income tax for the year has been arrived at after FERNBIAER NG Ty &5 :
charging:
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T THT
Auditor’s remuneration Gl
— audit services — FBi R 560 560
— non-audit services — TR 370 280
930 840
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses EREHZNFEEKAK 15,020 16,104
Depreciation e 4,839 5,044
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEME - BELEKEZEIE
equipment 5 52
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 FE W IE R (8 5 18 243 54
Minimum lease payments under operating THEEFAKEESHEE T
leases for land and buildings: RIEBEEMNK:
— staff quarters —BIES - 280
— office —WAE - 1,152
- 1,432
Short-term leases expenses EHEERX 863 —
Employee costs (including directors’ EERT(BREEEMHE) :
remuneration):
— Wages, salaries and allowances —T& &k 313,416 296,488
— Retirement scheme contributions — RARET S 5K 13,147 12,926
326,563 309,414
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 3R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2020  #( 202043 A31 AL F Z

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRBBiFA X

RMEFE EENEHDRINEHR
MGG REE AEEAERER

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in accordance with two-

tiered profits tax rate regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable

profits of a qualifying entity of the Group is taxed at 8.25% and the B 2,000,000 7% 7T F& 3R B & ) 128.25%

assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 are taxed at 16.5% for Z MR G EIE - M8 82,000,000

both years. TT B & RR R i A 3216.5% 2 Tt K B
T °

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BEVEAREIE — BB F 5,524 5,157
Current tax — under-provision/(over-provision) BN HA 5 18 — i3 1+ 4[5 B &

in prior years TR/ (R ) 87 (22)
Deferred taxation (note 22) IEIEFT B (Mf3E22) (164) 42
5,447 5,177

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit ey HBIRERAMNERTEN 2T

at applicable tax rate: i Al # B -
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FB T
Profit before income tax b BT 15 %1 A1 v ) 26,149 26,019
Tax at applicable tax rate (note) %28 AR AR (M FE) 4,150 4,128
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT HOR S B R A Y & 1,270 1,131

Under-provision/(over-provision) in prior years i@ 1+ £ [& B & 1~ 2 (FB %8 #&

1) 87 22)
Tax concession HEESR (60) (60)
Income tax expense FiEHiMAx 5,447 5177

Note:

For the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, Hong Kong Profits tax of the
qualifying entity of the Group is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime. The profits of other Group entities in Hong Kong are

calculated at16.5%.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MNEENESREEEME
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ remuneration (@ E=M<E
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and Discretionary scheme
Fees other benefits bonus contributions Total
§e BER
ne Hit g A REETA BAKGTELER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR TR AR TR TER
Year ended 31 March 2020 #Z202053A31ALLEE
Executive directors: HTES:
Madam Ng Sing Mui REFLT - 3,612 451 181 4,244
Ms. Sze Tan Nei e &£ - 2,893 362 145 3,400
Mr. Ang Ming Wah HBELAE - 1,491 186 18 1,695
Mr. Sze Wai Lun MR R %4 - 1,084 135 18 1,237

Independent non-executive B EHTES

directors:
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen R % %&£ 4 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chung Koon Yan BERLE 240 - — - 240
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung B LA 240 - - - 240
Mr. Wong Yat Sum B—NhEE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chan Chun Sing G e 240 - - - 240
Total & 1,200 9,080 1,134 362 11,776

Year ended 31 March 2019 #HZ2019%3A31HLLFE

Executive directors: HITES:

Madam Ng Sing Mui RERLZL - 3,440 = 172 3,612
Ms. Sze Tan Nei 13 e 2 £ - 2,755 - 138 2,893
Mr. Ang Ming Wah HBPELAE - 1,420 - 18 1,438
Mr. Sze Wai Lun HE 12 f 55 4 - 1,082 - 18 1,050

Independent non-executive B Y kI {TEE :

directors:

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen 5= 38 5t 4 240 - - = 240
Mr. Chung Koon Yan EEREE 240 - - = 240
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung SEEELE 240 — = — 240
Mr. Wong Yat Sum g—OEAE 240 — - — 240
Mr. Chan Chun Sing PR iR T A& 240 - - - 240
Total G 1,200 8,647 - 346 10,193
No directors waived any emoluments during the year ended B E2020F3A3IHILFE HES
31 March 2020 (2019: nil). EMETAH S (20195 : £) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 3R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2020  #( 202043 A31 AL F Z

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MEERSREEEHNE@w
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EUEZSF AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the KEBRUZESME ALTH
Group, four (2019: four) were directors of the Company PUAz (20194 : WUfi7) AR A A&
whose emoluments are included in note 11(a) above. The E OEME ISR EXHE11@) -
emoluments of the remaining one (2019: one) individual was BTN — L (20194F : —fL) AT H
as follows: B T
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FET
Salaries, allowances and other benefits Fe HREMETR 606 580
Discretionary bonus ) 18 fE AT 75 —
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 30 29
711 609
The remuneration paid to the above non-director highest paid ENFTLENIEEEESHFEALTH
individual was within the following emolument band: HFMAR T ES & E :
2020 2019
2020 20194
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AEL
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7 7T & 1,000,000/% 7T 1 1
During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no A 2 20209F K2019F3 A31H It
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors of the FE NEBEVWERARD A E
Company or any of the five highest paid employees as an ER AR s EEFREM—{L
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as AT E B B A E AN A Sk i A A
compensation for loss of office. SEFREESIEA R mE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(c) Senior management’s emoluments

The remuneration paid to the senior management of the
Group (other than the directors as disclosed in note 11(a)
above) for the year fell within the following emolument bands:

MNEERGREEEMNES @

c) EREEEMNE

FAENTAEESRERE
(EXHEIE@QMRENE =K
SI) B 7 BT 5 T 5 B 2 S

2020 2019

2020 F 20194
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AR ABL

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7% 7T & 1,000,000 7% 7T 2 2

12. DIVIDENDS

(@  No dividend was proposed during the year ended 31 March
2020 (2019: the final dividend of HK1.67 cents was proposed
after the reporting date and was not recognised as a liability
at the reporting date).

(b)  Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year:

12. B2

@ B Z=2020F3A31BILFE A&
B R AR B (20194 - Rk & B 5
%2R 1.678 10 2 K E A% B £
NiEBBRBERRARE) -

b BEMBEEERHERE RAF
JZ 8t BORAT

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FB T

Final dividend paid in respect of prior year BAEFERMN KBRS
— HK1.67 cents (2019: HK1.67 cents) —BREBERK1.67FL
per ordinary share (20194 : 1.67381l) 10,020 10,020

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per share is based on the earnings
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the respective years.

13. B R E R

SREFHREREBEE AL TR
B A {5 B 2 B BT 2 AR 0 10 4
FIBEE -
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PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z 202043 A 31 B L&

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13. 8RB F )

146

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on
the following information:

BEREAREFERNTIREATER

i

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
Earnings ZF
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 4~ A & # B A FE 15 i F) 20,702 20,842
2019
20194
‘000
T
Number of shares BROEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  mt 5t & & A% £ 78 22 F1| 79 & 58 f%
for the purpose of basic earmnings per share TNHE 39 2 600,000 600,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: E# BB HZTER 2 &
— Share options — WEARE 6 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5t 51 & & I 55 2 | 89 I 8 A%
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share  AN#E F 5 21 600,006 600,000

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2020 is based on the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$20,702,000 (2019: HK$20,842,000)
and on the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
600,000,000 (2019: 600,000,000) in issue during the year ended
31 March 2020.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2020 is
calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive ordinary
shares.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2019 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options as the exercise price of those options is
higher than the average market price for shares.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED XK|EEREBERAT

BH E2020FE3A31B I FEN T K
EXABMDBBEARAQBEE AEMN
F N % F20,702,00078 JT (20194 :
20,842,000/ Jt) & # £ 20204 3 A 31
BIEFED T ERBEINEFEE
600,000,000 A% (2019 4 : 600,000,000

BOTE -

#H E2020F3A31 8 IEFE 2 T #
BEMNDBERBEME#H ST BRE
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HRZEERENTEESRERMD T
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % BRERRE
Office Other
furniture  Machinery properties
Leasehold Leasehold and and Motor  leased for
improvement land Buildings equipment equipment vehicles own use Total
BARE HittE A

HEHE HE+#H BF RRfE HERRE AE HENE A&
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THET TET TAT THET TEL FARX TET TAT

Cost RA&

At 1 April 2018 R2018%F4 8108 3,011 21,780 12,792 3,319 9,287 11,648 - 61,837
Additions NE - = = 87 2,500 1,322 - 3,909
Disposals & - - - (299) (1,297) = = (1,596)

At 31 March 2019 and 20193 A31B K

1 April 2019 20194 A1 H 3,011 21,780 12,792 3,107 10,490 12,970 - 64,150
Additions NE - - - 72 725 279 2,413 3,489
Disposals & - - - (20) (385) = = (405)
At 31 March 2020 202063 A31H 3,011 21,780 12,792 3,159 10,830 13,249 2,413 67,234
Accumulated RiHE

deprecation
At 1 April 2018 R2018%F4A1H 1,694 3,401 1,998 1,733 7,258 8,665 - 24,649
Provided for the year FREEH 816 628 369 359 1,327 1,545 - 5,044
Written back on disposals 7 & I # @] - - - (285) (1,259) - - (1,544)

At 31 March 2019 and 201946 3A318 &

1 April 2019 20194 A1 H 2,410 4,029 2,367 1,807 7,326 10,210 - 28,149
Provided for the year FREE 601 628 369 311 1,302 1,025 603 4,839
Written back on disposals A & 1 # @] - - - (16) (384) - - (400)
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3 A31 H 3,011 4,657 2,736 2,102 8,244 11,235 603 32,588
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2020 R2020%3 A31H - 17,123 10,056 1,057 2,586 2,014 1,810 34,646
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3 A31 H 601 17,751 10,425 1,300 3,164 2,760 - 36,001
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #; Z=202043 A31 HIF FE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Notes:

@)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the leasehold land and buildings are
pledged as securities for the Group’s bank borrowings and banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 20).

In prior years, the Group used the leasehold land and buildings (the “Property”)
as its head office (“Actual Use”). The permitted use (“Permitted Use”) of
the Property as specified in each of the relevant () conditions of sale and
government grant; (i) occupation permit; (i) deeds of mutual covenant is (a)
for industrial purpose; (b) as workshops for non-domestic use; (c) for use
as prescribed by the government lease and the occupation permit
respectively. Accordingly, in prior years, the Actual Use did not comply
with the Permitted Use as set out above and is in breach of section 25(1)
of the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for
failure to notify the Buildings Department regarding the change of land
use.

Since December 2017, the Group has leased an office premises and the
Group’s head office has been moved into the leased office premises. The
Group has terminated to use the Property as head office since then. The
Property was then used by the Group as warehouse.

Although the Group changed the use of the Property from head office to
warehouse and the use of the Property as warehouse is complied with
the Permitted Use, the prosecution under the provisions of the Buildings
Ordinance may be commenced within 12 months of the same being
discovered by or coming to the notice of the Buildings Department.
Pursuant to section 40(2) of the Buildings Ordinance, the maximum
exposure of the fine as a result of the aforesaid matter is approximately
HK$100,000.

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of the Property is
approximately HK$27,179,000 (2019: HK$28,176,000).

KIEZRERBBRAF

14. ¥ BERKRE@

B &L

MR2020F M2019F3A31H & £
WMEREFEERFIEARNEBRITER
RAEEER ZHRTHE 2 ER M
20) ©

RBAFEE ALEFRHEEL MK
BFE(ZOEDELBENHEERE([ER
®]) - EEBASEOEE RBFR DK
(N (1) R == = =) e SR (11 N | B 7/ 3
HERE(EERR]) DRI EERIER
BOEEERAERNTS  OBRNEE
FEAFAEATENRAZ Bt RNi@
FEE BERARYRET EXHED
BERZ  BERERTHAREFHM
CEFEMEREBEMNE123FRE
) {6191 28 25(1) 1 -

R2017F 128 AEBMBE —EBEHA
EWE UEAEELHERBAZA
ERAEWE AL AEBDKRLEF
AZMERRBNHER - ZWEHED
HASEGRIEARE -

BEASERSDERCHAREER
RE BZVEERRENRENAF
A% ERBECGEEM G GXER
MR JEEFTERRAETERE
ETRKIZEARRTE - RIBGEEY
R GI) 52 40(2) ff - B A Lt = IE T & 2K
£ 3K HY i AR 42 49 73 100,00078 7T °

MR202043A31H ZMEZE®MES
#927,179,000/% 7t (20194 : 28,176,000
BIT) °



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of

underlying asset is as follows:

14. ¥ BERZRHE@®

BeE - ()

()

EREEE

RIEBEAERNBSNEREEEDN
BREFED TN

Ownership interests in leasehold land
held for own use
Other properties leased for own use

FFEAMBE L2

P HE 2R
HiERAAEYE

At 31 March At 1 April
2020 2019
R202063H31H R201954A1H
HK$°000 HK$’'000

TET FTHT

17,123 17,751

1,810 =

The followings are the expenses in relation to leases recognised in profit

or loss:

HERSTHEIANEEFBNX NN

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class
of underlying asset:
— leasehold land held for own use
— other properties leased for own use

Interest on lease liabilities (note 8)

Expenses relating to short-term leases

Operating lease charges in respect of properties

Aggregate undiscounted commitments for
short-term leases

BEREEEMNS SO MEREEE

MTEER

— FEARAMEE L

— Htpa AEEY

HEEERNE (HEs)
EHIEE S H
MENEEREIH

ES

2 HATE B A R BRI A E R B

2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT THT
628 —

603 —

53 =

863 =

— 1,432

116 —

During the year ended 31 March 2020, additions to right-of-use assets
were HK$2,413,000. The additions are non-cash transaction.

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of HK$690,000 during the
year ended 31 March 2020. Details of the maturity analysis of lease

liabilities are set out on note 19.

HZE2020F3A31BLLFE FHEE
ERE2,413,0008 70 2 ERE AR
R

HE2020F3A31BILEFE  A£EH
& 2R €% i 48 % A690,0008 7T - A
BHEEAEBRZHBHSMEBIHANKN T
19 °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B # R M RE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &% 20204F 3 31 H I F &

15. INVENTORIES

15. 7 &

16

2020 2019

2020 % 20194

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FET

Consumables, at cost SHAEm GRA) 279 14
TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. E 5 B K1\

2020 2019

2020 % 20194

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TE T FBT

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance 5 EWHRTE  NkEERE 124,503 114,497

Trade receivables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for both

years.

The credit terms of the trade receivables are ranged from O to 60
days (2019: 0 to 60 days) from the date of billing. Further details on
the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade

receivables are set out in note 30(b).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice date
and net of loss allowance as of the end of the reporting period is as

RMEFEE  BHREFEHLET

SHE -

ZEoRBURENEEREHAEAH
# N FOXR =60 (20194 : 0K £60
R -BRAEECEEBRRREZEK
REMEAEERR ZE—FTFEH

AP FE30(b) ©

BERESHMR ERXNBZAHNES
JE W R IR (1 BR 5 1R B 48) R ik 20 T 40

follows: T
2020 2019
2020 % 20194
HK$°000 HK$’'000
TET FH& T
Within one month —@AAR 46,809 47,162
One to three months —Z=18A 59,910 54,383
More than three months =EAMNE 17,784 12,952
124,503 114,497
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

17.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

16. E 5 FE W FIE (@)

Movement in the impairment loss allowance in respect of Group’s EHAEEY 5 EIRIIEREE B R
trade receivables is as follows: BzEHmT

Balance at 31 March 2018 under HKAS 39 RIEE B e R F£305E N 2018FE3A31H 2

HK$’000
TERT

e —
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 TBERBBYBEMEENEIR 2 E 71
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2018 201844 A1 H 2 &A% 71
Impairment loss recognised during the year FANEHERZBEREE 54
Balance at 31 March 2019 R2019F 3 H31 B 2 & &4 125
Impairment loss recognised during the year FANERERZRERE 243
Balance at 31 March 2020 202043 A 31 H 2 & &4 368

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITSAND OTHER 17. JE{1 % 1\E - 4 R H b E

RECEIVABLES WK
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FH& T
Prepayments for consumables JE FE o M9 TR 5B 124 95
Other prepayments H b T8 3 E 4,924 6,331
Deposits R& 746 667
Other receivables H b fE W3R TE 1,925 170
7,719 7,263
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% 3R 3% P &
For the year ended 31 March 2020 & & 2020 3 A 31 E¢¢f§

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18. EZ R HMESFIE

2020 2019
2020 % 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables (note (a)) B rEMNFE(WE@) 14,737 14,710
Accrued staff costs JEET B TR A 25,694 23,742
Other accrued expenses (note (b)) H th & 51 59 S (BT 5 (o)) 7,195 5,450
Other payables H b fE A OB 467 299
Deposits " 639 578
33,995 30,069

Notes: B 5

() Trade payables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for both years.

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date as of the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

@ RWEFE B5EMNFIRBGABITF

B o

BERSHR ENBRERHNESE
NARBEREDTOT :

2020 2019

2020 20194F

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FET T T

Within one month —@AR 10,494 4,756

One to three months —Z={@A 3,614 9,172

More than three months =@ANRE 629 782
14,737 14,710

(o)  As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, other accrued expenses mainly (o) R 20204F K 2019F3 A31 H » HE b fEET

represented the accrued untaken paid leave.

RXETEERARZATHEY -

152 WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED k|EIEREFHEER AT



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

19. LEASE LIABILITIES 19. HEEE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TRINRAEBENFARAZHERES
the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the year: TEXHREER :
2020
2020 F
Present
value of
Minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
BREHEE EEHEE
E NRRE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Not later than one year TEBER—F 1,380 1,321
Later than one year and not later than —FERETERRE
two years 460 455
1,840 1,776
Less: future interest expenses B AR RF B (64) -
Present value of lease liabilities HEAERE 1,776 1,776
Analysis as reporting purpose as: BEREMNDTA :
Current liabilities mB A& 1,321
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 455
1,776
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20. BANK BORROWINGS

20. SR IT B

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT

Bank loans

RITER

T

7,431 9,364

All of the Group’s bank loans as at 31 March 2020 and 2019
contained a repayable on demand clause and therefore the entire
bank loan balances for both years have been classified as current

liabilities.

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors of
the Company considered it is unlikely that the banks will exercise
its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The directors of the
Company considered that the bank loans will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled payment dates set out in the loan
agreements. An analysis of the bank loans in accordance with the

contractual repayment terms are summarised in the table below:

7N £ B 720204 KR2019F3 431 H &Y
PIABRTERHAREREEGRR
AitmEFENEMRITERSRD
DER/RBEE-

ERAKEENTHMNRR ARAEF
R RITTAAERNBEERIANE
R RARABEERR RITEFHR
BEXWBEMEAAE KRB HE
e TRPAIZA WEKBET R
BERDH

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FBT

Analysed based on scheduled repayment

R 15 & R 15 3 A W A9 G BIB X

terms set out in the loan agreements, HETH D :
into:
Within one year —E R 1,880 2,346
In the second year - y=2 1,498 1,459
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZFEERF(BREER
K 4,053 4,611
Beyond five years FEFMNE - 948
7,431 9,364

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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20. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(i) All bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. As at 31
March 2020, the bank borrowings carried floating interest rates ranged
from 2.60% to 3.56% (2019: ranged from 2.60% to 3.93%) per annum.

(ii) As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the banking facilities granted to the
Group were secured by the following:
(@) properties held by the Group with net carrying amount of

approximately HK$27,179,000 (2019: HK$28,176,000); and

(b) letter of undertaking and unlimited corporate guarantee executed
by the Company.

21. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE
PAYMENTS

(i

20. SR 1T & &K @

Fr B $R1T 18 3 A B JT 5B © 20204 3
A318 ' RITHERATHAZEF RN T
HFF2.60EZE3.56F (20194 : /1 T2.60
EZE3.93E) °

20204 201943 A31 8 « A&k HE
BREBRTEER T & BEEM

@ ZAX&KEEBMBEKR@EFELD
27,179,000 7T (2019 4
28,176,000 7T) 2 W% : &

() ARARFEIMEABEERERGIA
AIER -

21. RARBERE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE& T FB T

Liabilities for employee benefit comprise: EERANAGBEHE:

Long service payments accrual, classified as K HIRE S ETER -

non-current liabilities EREBEE

DB

12,234 10,480

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment
in certain circumstances to certain employees who have completed
at least five years of service with the Group. The amount payable is
dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and
is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The
Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining
obligations.

REBBREBEN AEEAEET
BATHRLIERAE/SAKRETKE
PAFERBNETREXN —FRK
He AXNZHBARBRTZERE
MRRFEEREFH  LHIREA
SEERFERAEEHRAREN
FRE -AEEALEBEEMEEN
REFRBTEERERRER -
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22. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

23.

Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements
during the current and prior year are as follows:

22 EEHIEERE

RAFERBEFECEBELEHRR
BEREHZFBOT

Accelerated tax
depreciation

IR B I I B
HK$’'000
FAET
As at 1 April 2018 M2018%F 4 A1 8 1,216
Charged for the year (note 10) F R (FFEE10) 42
As at 31 March 2019 and at 1 April 2019 PR20194 3 A31 H M 1R20194F4 1 H 1,258
Credited for the year (note 10) FAEA (HMFFE10) (164)
As at 31 March 2020 720203 A 31 H 1,094
SHARE CAPITAL 23. [ Z&
Number
of shares HK$’000
BB EB FE T
Authorised: SEFE
Shares of HK$0.01 each & A% [ {5.0.01 7% 7T 19 i 15
At 31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 and 201943 A31H * 201944 A
31 March 2020 1H K&2020F3 A31H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EZTRHE -
At 31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 and R2019F3 A31H » 20194 A
31 March 2020 1H &2020F3 A31H 600,000,000 6,000

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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24. RESERVES

Group

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves for the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 97. The natures and
purposes of reserves within equity are as follows:

(@)

Share premium account of the Company represents the
excess of the proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares
received over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued.

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
group reorganisation and represented the difference between
the consideration under the group reorganisation and the
nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries then
acquired.

The share option reserve represents the cumulative expenses
recognised on the granting of share options to the eligible
participants over the vesting period.

24, #E

rEE

A £ B B £2020F K& 201943 431 H
EFEEZREEDHFBR2INNEITE
IERAEERSHRN - RERHE 2K
HREWAT :

@ ARAZBRMDEEREETE
PR P W B 2 PR 1S SRIB R AR R
EETRMHEENED -

Ll
A

b AEBAHREEDOAEESZHE
£ o HESEEHR N RER
ERAMEEMEARKRARELZ
E® e

© BREEEEAEEBHERLE
o2 B I B IR ME IS R 2 2
Hrx
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24. RESERVES (Continued)

24. {#4% @)

Company i /NI
Share
Share Merger option Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
REDEE BOHREE BRERE = B % F et
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FHETT FET
At 1 April 2018 "20185F481H 48,177 (10) 34 10,216 58,417
Profit for the year and ~ F AR Fl R F R &
total comprehensive M Uy &5 48 58
income for the year — — — 11,946 11,946
Final dividend paid BRI RAERE — — — (10,020) (10,020)
At 31 March 2019 and 74201943 A 31 H
1 April 2019 % 20194811 48,177 (10) 34 12,142 60,343
Loss for the year and FAEBEEEFRE
total comprehensive MW = 458
income for the year — — — (1,753) (1,753)
Final dividend paid B RS = = = (10,020) (10,020)
Share options lapsed B 5k &% i A% 1 = = (4) 4 -
At 31 March 2020 7202063831 H 48,177 (10) 30 373 48,570

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was adopted
by the sole shareholder of the Company (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”). The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to aid the
Company in retaining key and senior employees of the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is 192,000. No share option may be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme if this will result in
the limit being exceeded.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees of any member of the Group and any executive
directors of the Company.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.

On 23 February 2017, the Company has authorised to grant
to 6 eligible participants to subscribe for an aggregate of
192,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. On
the same date, the Company has granted share options to 6
eligible participants to subscribe for an aggregate of 192,000
shares.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
share option offered under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be equal to the offer price of HK$0.42 per share.

(i)

25. B ST &

=]

AHBEANERE

4

Bl S5

R2017FE2 8218 » KA A M —
REREM—EHEREZ ((EX
ARABEAERETS]) 7R
AHBERERESSE A —BER
HEETE HR T E EH B
KRR BRBAEEETBZ RS RIE
g
EREE X ARSI ERERT
ZIR AT A BT M A
TR R (D B £ R &192,000
% o il AR 48 B R A B 3 & AT A
WE ST B 9% ) BE AR 18 8 BB IR
B BT R R AR -

BERSEEREAEEEMAK
BERBIZEMEZBERBEER N
RARBZEFMATES -

R AT B AR B A LB B
RERARAMIBTERSR

& -

R201742 8238 AR A B &%
BRI E B R ARSI ERE
FFEReRA B/ BEER LA
2B A $£192,000 0% B% 15 o 1A [
H ARQRMA6RAEERLIES
7] 3R B8 A& $£192,000 8% A% 10
R B AR o

BB R A 73 E A B R AT 810R
TR B2 05 E R g 2 B D
RBEREEEETR04I2BT

R
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The share options granted to each grantee under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to exercise the share
options granted during the option period under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme in the following manners:

(@ 50% of the share options granted to grantee under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on or after
the first date on which dealings in the shares of the
Company commenced on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Date”) to the date immediately before the tenth
anniversary of the Listing Date; and

(b)  50% of the share options granted to grantee under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on or after
the date falling on the first anniversary of the Listing
Date to the date immediately before the tenth
anniversary of the Listing Date.

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are not transferable and share options not exercised
within the exercise period will lapse and cease to be of further
effect. All the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall lapse automatically and not be
exercisable (to the extent not already exercised) on the expiry
of the option period.

Share options granted prior to the expiration of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme but not yet exercised at that time shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

KIEZRERBBRAF

25, B s & )

(i)

BARXABEBERERE
)

RIBE B IR AR % E A RERER &
A& AR ARG 2 BRESE T
152 S5 ) LA T 1) 75 =050 B B 1
BRI B R A 5 3% & A BB R AT
BTER L Z B

@ MBREEBXARAZEENERKR
Bt A R AR BN R
BMXHmABEEREZER
TEPHABDRZREER
EETRABETEBFA
Al 2 B 5 B ) BE R () A 4%
AR H50% 88 A+ &

b REBXAFMEEHEK
BB AR ETEMSE —
AEFRERAXZIEEER
EETHHETEASA
Al 2 B 5 B R BE RS () A 8%
AHX i 50% i i -

BRAFMBEEMBREEAT
R zBEERERTIEE kKX
17158 AP i AR 1T {62 2 B PR A S K
METBRERS - ERAFME
ERMBRETEETREZME
BRESNEBREDRRERS A
B R R AR AT (PA R R AT 1
ERR) -

RERAFEE R ERE S E
A B E B R T A0 R AR
BEEBEERIRBIBEERAFRE
SR BRERT &I A TATRE -
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following tables disclose details of movements of share
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

Year ended 31 March 2020

25, fE R R &l )

(i)

BARAABEBEERERKRE
0

TREBIREERAM SN
B BB R 2 W AR B

:|\$.
g5 -

>

I

HZ20203A831HILFEE

Number of share options

BRERE
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At
Share 1 April during during during 31 March
option type 2019 the year the year the year 2020
BRE RN2019F 2020 £
BH 481 HFREY FRITIE FRXH%X 3H31H
Director 2=
Ang Ming Wah  JtBF 2= Tranche 1 32,000 - - - 32,000
£—#t
Tranche 2 32,000 - - - 32,000
E#t
Employees EE
In aggregate EET Tranche 1 64,000 - - (12,000) 52,000
£—#t
Tranche 2 64,000 - - (12,000) 52,000
E-#t
Total 485 192,000 — — (24,000) 168,000

Annual Report 2020 2020%F &£

161



162

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 3R 3% MY &
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2019

25, R ESTE @
(i) PHBEABRE

(%

BZ2019F3A31ALEE

o 55

= g

Number of share options

AR RS A
At Granted  Exercised Lapsed At
Share 1 April during during during 31 March
option type 2018 the year the year the year 2019
BHR#E 20185 R 2019F
A 481 FARE FRITE FRKM 3H31H
Director =
Ang Ming Wah it BF 2 Tranche 1 32,000 — — — 32,000
£—#
Tranche 2 32,000 — — — 32,000
£
Employees =1
In aggregate EEr Tranche 1 64,000 — — — 64,000
£—#
Tranche 2 64,000 — — — 64,000
£
Total st 192,000 — — — 192,000

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED KJEZEREBERAF
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)

(ii)

25, R ESTE @

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) ) BEX BB EABRE
ot 8l (@)
Details of the outstanding share options granted under the BIEBRXAHEZERBRESZ
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows: BHEZHARTEEBREZEBNO
T
Exercise
Share option type Date of grant Exercisable period price
BRERR A TEHE THEE
Tranche 1 23 February 2017 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42
E—# 2017925231 20173 A 16 B E£2027F3 A 158 0.427 7T
Tranche 2 23 February 2017 16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42
- Sabiid 201792 A23H 20183 A 16 H £2027F3 A 15H 0.4273 7T

All the 168,000 (2019: 192,000) outstanding share options
are exercisable as at 31 March 2020.

The share options outstanding at 31 March 2020 had
weighted average exercise price of HK$0.42 (2019: HK$0.42)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 6.96
years (2019: 7.1 years).

Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was adopted
by the then sole shareholder (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to eligible participants of the Group and to promote
the success of the business of the Group.

(ii)

7202043 A 31 H * 168,000 {7
(20194 : 192,00017 ) ™4 & 17 f&
BRI FITE -

R20205E3 A31 H ik AR 171 2 88
BEREINEFII1T(EE B0.4278 T
(20194 : 04278 70) » E n#EF
5 82 & #) F B A26.964F (2019
FETAE)

BRESTE

R2017FE2 8218 » &M — &
B — T8 B8 A A T &I ([ BB R 4
&l -

BhEE s aERsI RRERE
FHAR RAKEAERSHE
ERPREINEBARESHAEE
EBaIEE -
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The eligible participants include any employee (full-time or
part-time), director, consultant, adviser, substantial
shareholder, distributor, contractor, supplier,
customer, business partner or service provider of the Group.
The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any
option shall be determined by the Company’s board of
director (the “Board”) (or as the case may be, the independent
non-executive directors) from time to time on the basis of his
contribution or potential contribution to the development and

growth of the Group.

The subscription price of a share respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a
price solely determined by the Board and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the
closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (i) the nominal value of a share of the Company

on the date of grant of the option.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an

option is HK$1.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED KIEIZERREFHEER A A
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company as from the
adoption date (excluding, for this purpose, shares issuable
upon exercise of options which have been granted but have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company)
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares in issue
as at the Listing Date. Therefore, it is expected that the
Company may grant options in respect of up to 60,000,000
shares (or such numbers of Shares as shall result from a sub-
division or a consolidation of such 60,000,000 Shares from
time to time) to the participants under the Share Option
Scheme.

The 10% limit as mentioned above may be refreshed at any
time by approval of the shareholders in general meeting
provided that the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at
the date of approval of the refreshed limit. Options previously
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including those outstanding,
cancelled or lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the refreshed 10% limit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Group at any time
shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of the Company
from time to time. No share options shall be granted under
any schemes of the Company (including the Share Option
Scheme) if this will result in the 30% limit being exceeded.

25, B s & )

(ii)

8 BT 8 )

B 49 B B AR R AR 15 S AR AT 2
K 7R X B {E ] H B8 AR 4 5t &l
BT RENMEBREETER
AETHRMEE ER(GEM
T OAIABEEERHEREER
5T 8 3 AR A B {A] E 4th B8 R 4
FHEIGERE KRB BRI EITE
MABITHRGD) AXTERB
PR ETBHEHEETRMHH
10% A It - BB A 2 7] 7] 1R 4%
BREdESR2EERD S KR
1= #£60,000,000 & f% 15 (3% & 1 By
¥ 48 3% & #F 5%60,000,000 A% B% 10
MEENRGEH B ) B E -

b STt 9 10% b FR AT B B 4% iR
REBRRAS LHERER B
D AR 3 B A A =t &) B AN R BE AR
H Al B A R T 81 IR h ey 2 BB A
REEITE M A AL 1T AR D 48
BOIAGBEBAMELENLRE
HEHTRMDMWI0% tEKE
$110% £ PR EF - %5 A AR 4% B8 AR 48
&t 8 Ko AR R BE A E At B8 A T
AREMERE(BERERK
RERT 8| N AN & BT ] H h B8 AR
FPEI IR E RTTE - B
BERBOBERE) TS EEAR-

BE WU AREERER S &
7R % (L ) L At BB AR AT 813K
mHARITEN 2 BB ERETE
m AJ BE BT B9 A - M (] B I
AT EEBBARRTREHITHR
17 B930% ° #NAR & K 1 &) E A &1
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and which fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group (including both exercised and outstanding options) to
each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of offer
to grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of offer to grant. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to

shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

In addition, any grant of an option to a Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company (or any
of their respective close associates) must be approved by the
independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of the
option). Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director (or any
of their respective close associates) will result in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the shares in issue; and having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the Shares at the date of each grant,
in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of share
options will be subject to, in addition to the approval of

shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

No share option under the Share Option Scheme has been

granted since its adoption.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED XK|EEREBERAT

25. iR ETTE @)
(i) &R #EE @

HEZHRE BB IEEMA121E A
HEA - BRERERE S KA
5 B fA] H i BB RRCRE A 81 [A) & K
RARLOBRE(RBRDITE
R RITRE RO BB ) AT M
BIIRATERITOERNDER T
FSHEBARAARANENRLEBHC
BT 1% EMBEINK L
BB %1% LR ERE DAL
BRNBERAE L4 -

O MARBEE TETK
ABHETEBRR(IBEFS B
ERETBEA)RBEMEK
B9 AKRBYIFRTESR(T
BE S REREARANERE
VHERATER )R E - HAETE
BREABIIFATES(IWE
EENEAETHEA)RKE
MEREMEREBER LAY
(B ZA) L E[121E A 5 &
W Bl AT EREBERER S
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EREEERNOZABRE(E
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26.

27.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z= 202043 A 31 H I[EF

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 26. E ERIKER
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF NEBBEREEBCRSMELAES T
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Z&FY BEEHBFEEESZTEHED
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed in Hong Kong. The BetaEl((aEsstall) - aELEt
MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered 2 ABRBUYREAEEN EREMEIE
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employers Ret e R B8 - BEERHE
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the BEZBEMWERZTEHEIESHEH
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of WARS%  EXT AHEBW AR LR
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan 30,0007 JT AT iR R © 2% =1 &1 &9 4 K AP
vest immediately. RrERE o
The retirement scheme cost recognised in profit or loss represents NIERERNERETEIK AR &K E
contributions paid or payable to the MPF scheme by the Group at REBLTEHBBE TN RAEIE
rates specified in the rule of the MPF scheme. As at 31 March 2020 SETEE MR EMNAHARIE R
and 2019, the Group had no significant obligation apart from the 20204 20193 A31H « k& £ X AT
contributions as stated above and there is no forfeited contribution MR BGRIESN  AE B W EAE A E
arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefit scheme and AEET BTERESRHEEKREH
which were available to reduce contributions payable. st &I E 4 Xr] A LR A FE S A
NER| o
/X J‘MZ 1/ X TA °
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 27. REHERE
The Group as lessor KEBEAEHBEA
Future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable BIEAREBRT A BHE 2 E -EW
operating lease of the Group were as follows: WARRFERERENT
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAET
Within one year R—FR - 8
Lease are negotiated for term of 1 year. HEWMER—F -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 & £20204 3 A 381 I+ F &

27. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

The Group as lessee

At 31 March 2019, the Group had total commitments under
operating leases in respect of non-cancellable operating leases for
land and buildings to make payment in the future years as follows:

27. REHEAE @)

REBER/REHEA

MN2019F3A31H » REB R B K&
HEABIHEREFHTAMELE
HEMARREEMRAEABNOT

2019

20194

HK$'000

FAT

Within one year R—FR 765

Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one year to two years
and rentals are fixed over the terms.

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i)  Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no other significant transaction
with related parties for the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019.

(i) The remunerations of key management personnel, which are
the directors of the Company during the year, were as

HEBESNTF—FEMEREER
HBEASEEERHE -

28. BEFRS

) BEayBHRREMESARE
& AN B 220204 220194 3 A
BMIALFE AEEHMERWME
REEZTRS -

i) AFE F2EEEA/ALRAAE
FOREZFMIRET

follows:
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FBT
Short-term employee benefits HHEERA 11,414 9,847
Retirement scheme contributions RORET 8K 362 346
11,776 10,193
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29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
and to support the Group’s stability and growth.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure, taking into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group, to ensure optimal returns to shareholders.

For capital management purpose, the directors of the Company
regard the total equity presented on the consolidated statement of
financial position as capital.

20. EAREE

AEBNEAREEARRRENEE
FEBKEMRE S ARBRER Rt A
SmARBE T AR E R EOR A - & E
BEARARE BHIBREARARIFAE
BoRERER-

AEEEBRYEHEHLRERALEAR
R BERAKERENERNER
VARE (R B BCR S K & B B 4 -

REAEEBEMS  ARAREEH
RAUBRAERMENNBREDRE
Z’KO

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FAET

Bank borrowings RITE A 7,431 9,364
Total debt FEN=R 7,431 9,364
Total equity 1B RE T 134,873 124,191
Gearing ratio EAXREELE 0.06 times{Z 0.08 timesf&
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. Bt 7% = b B 3R

170

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its use
of financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and fair value risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarter, in close co-operation with the directors. The overall
objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the Group’s
short to medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to
financial markets.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes. It identifies ways to
access financial markets and monitors the Group’s financial risk
exposure. Regular reports are provided to the directors of the
Company.

(@) Summary of financial assets and liabilities
by category

AEEZERNAEAELEBRERNA
REEHPERERTAMEEZE
MRk BERREEEERR -
mBETRR M EXEARNRRFER

B -

MHERREEBASERLHAE
B EBEENZEIEEMAZES -
EEVHRRBRNARBERETER
AEBNPEHAESRE EHAE
AR ESRT ISR -

AEBO BRI IFFAIRE B &M iE S
HEEEcRIA -HYEXBELH
MEREEASEMBRARNAIA
YRARNRBEFTRIEHRRS -

() REFSAITHNERMEE
REEHME

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Financial assets SREE
Amortised cost: 12 HESH K AN 51 BR
Trade receivables g 5 W R IE 124,503 114,497
Deposits and other receivables o K& H b fE Y KIE 2,671 837
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEEEEY 40,469 33,844
167,643 149,178
Financial liabilities SEEE
Amortised cost: 12 HE 5 K AN 51 BR
Trade payables B 5 BT 3RIE 14,737 14,710
Accruals, deposits and other payables BFrER - EM
JE 1~ RRIE 33,995 30,069
Bank borrowings |ITHEK 7,431 9,364
Lease liabilities HEGE 1,776 —
57,939 54,143
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributed to its trade and
other receivables and bank balances. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis and follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk with two
customers with trade receivables of HK$40,436,000 (2019:
two customers of HK$37,503,000) as at 31 March 2020.

For trade receivables, the Group reassesses the lifetime
expected credit losses at the end of the reporting period to
ensure the adequate impairment losses are made for
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of default
occurring since initial recognition. In this regard, management
of the Group considers that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group applies provision matrix to measure the expected
credit losses. As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the expected
loss rates applied in the provision matrix are determined with
reference to the debtors’ characteristics, including historical
actual loss on the trade receivables and information specific
to the debtors as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtors operate. The weighted-
average expected loss rates ranging from 0.10% to 1.85%
(2019: 0.08% to 0.59%) were applied to trade receivables.

Bt 7% & b2 B B )
b) EERK

AEENEERRIZRANE
B 5 N H Al e WK IR A R R 1T 48
BAEH -EEEERE—ER
ERX ZEEERREFSEL
%%ﬁﬁ“ﬂﬁmﬁﬁ TE) AU
Bl % R R 75 o

R20206F3A31H  AEEEA
SR EERR MEEFHNE
5 FE U R IE 7%40,436,0007% TT
(20194 : @ % & = 37,508,000
JL) °

NESERFEME  AEER
REMARETF G2 HBEHEE
518 - LAREIR B )18 FE R LA 2R 2%
A B 49 ) BE M Bk R B BB 2 1 N
TEH B SR BB EEE - sttt i
CAREBERERAS NEM
FEHMM%M“O

RNEEEREEREME =88
£ B B 18 - 20204 K 201943
H31H « FERAREEEREMTE L
BEEDNE2ZEE ANEE
BIEBEZEKRFENBRTERES
BREBAZERER K RES
AFBRZEBERRBE 2ER ME
E o N F0.10% E 1.85%(20194F :
0.08% £ 0.59% ) K 78 B &5 48 == A1
BIEHHERNE S EIGRIE -
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)  30. B 7% B B & 32 (@)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1= E = B @)

As at 31 March 2020
7"202053A31H
Average
expected Gross
credit loss carrying Loss

rate amount allowance
49 FA

FEBREZR IREAE EERE

HK$’000 HK$°000

THERT THET

Not yet past due 8] 7 180 HA 0.10% 47,122 47
Less than one month past due AR — @A 0.10% 59,649 57
One to three months past due mH—Z==EA 0.27% 6,586 18
More than three months past due BEA={E AN E 2.14% 11,514 246

124,871 368

As at 31 March 2019
R2019F3 A31H

Average
expected Gross
credit loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
19 78 BA

EEEEX fRmEARE R
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT THET

Not yet past due % 7 780 2 0.08% 47,395 39
Less than one month past due wmEA DR —@A 0.07% 53,962 38
One to three months past due mH—Z= =1 A 0.15% 6,799 10
More than three months past due wHI=E AU L 0.59% 6,466 38

114,622 125
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

For other receivables, the Group has assessed and
concluded that the expected credit loss for these receivables
is insignificant based on the risk of default of those
counterparties under 12-month ECL approach. Thus, no loss
allowance was recognised as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

The credit risk for bank balances is considered negligible,
since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality
external credit ratings.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral
or other credit enhancement.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade

30. 81 & & b B B )
(b) 1= E = B @)

RHEMERZEmMES  ERE S
BHRE  AEBHETIHLE
tERRERIEI2EABHEE
BB BHEEBBRYZERE
WHRBEBILTEE - F It - 722020
F N20194F3 A 31 H I £ #E R
R -

RITERNERRR A AR
AR TRERERINEGE
BN HERFBENRT -

AEEN TR EEHEREEIRY
S HEAMAEEIREEITER -

B 5 W HOE 2 R RS

receivables is as follows: R
HK$’000
FET
Balance at 1 April 2018 MK2018F 4 A1 H Z2 &gk [
Impairment losses recognised during the year £ X #3222 &l 1 /65 18 54
Balance at 31 March 2019 201943 A 31 B 2 & &R 125
Impairment losses recognised during the year £ (A #2222 5l 1 /&5 18 243
Balance at 31 March 2020 202043 A 31 B 2 & & 368
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  30. B 7% /& b8 & B ()

(c) Liquidity risk (c) RENE € R

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities.
The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade and other payables and its financing obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with bank covenants, to
ensure the Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major banks and
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and the

MEBE & R K RS B8R m
RHASHABABNETNE
A ASEERESEEES
REMENRARERERTH
MRS ESAR BIFEAR
EREEEEHM-

AEBOBRBEREZEER
BeHmRKRERRTHEENER
B AREIR N 6% B 4 15 58 2 Y
Re@HBEARIEERETRS
BMBEESEANCITNRER
B AR EE SRR EEHN
MBEELHK -

TRAALEESREBERRS
HRNBTENBNABER HE
RABRASRE(BRRAE
A R Bl (fis 207 B ) 3R ) B e
EHHBRTHERFENFE R

H)RAEEREAXNNRS
HE -

earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

Total
contractual Within one
Carrying undiscounted year or on
amount amount demand
2754

More than
one year

AMARE R-—FAFH
FREE k] BEXR

—FH0E
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FERT

At 31 March 2020 72020563 A31H

Trade payables B 5 ENHIE 14,737 14,737 14,737 -

Accruals, deposits and  EETER - #E& &
other payables H b f& 5 R IE 33,995 33,995 33,995 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 1,776 1,840 1,380 460
Bank borrowings RIT 1B 7,431 7,611 7,611 -
57,939 58,183 57,723 460
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

30. EEKRERE@m

(c) RENVE € =H bz |)

Total
contractual Within one
Carrying undiscounted year or on More than
amount amount demand one year
A4
REHEFKRIE R—FRAK
R A e 2K —F L E
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FHETT FHET FHET
At 31 March 2019 A201943A31H
Trade payables B 5 EN IR 14,710 14,710 14,710 -
Accruals, depositsand ~ JEEtE R - HE& R
other payables H th & 5 R IR 30,069 30,069 30,069 —
Bank borrowings RIT 1B 9,364 9,620 9,620 =
54,143 54,399 54,399 —

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors of the Company considered it is unlikely that the
banks will exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company considered that
the bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled payment dates set out in the loan agreements
which are summarised in the table below:

ZRINREENHBMAR XA
AIEERR RITTANAENE
ERVEAER - ARFEER
& RITERBRE TR
B & R 1% & P E AT &I 5 A B ME
=

More than More than

Total contractual  Less than one year two years
Carrying  undiscounted one year or butless than but less than More than
amount amount on demand two years five years five years

S

ARRFE  -FAR -FULEE MEULE
BHE ok REX DM E SREF EENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL FTHET THET THEL FTHET THEL
At 31 March 2020 7420203 F31H 7,431 7,873 2,061 1,624 4,188 -
At 31 March 2019 A2019%3H31H 9,364 10,003 2,549 1,624 4,873 957
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

(e)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from variable rate bank
balances and bank borrowings. Exposure to interest rate risk
exists on those balances subject to floating interest rate when
there are unexpected adverse interest rate movements. The
Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk, working
within an agreed framework, to ensure that there are no
unduly exposures to significant interest rate movements and
rates are approximately fixed when necessary.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for bank borrowings at the end
of the year. The analysis is prepared assuming amounts of
these financial instruments outstanding at the end of the year
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
increase or decrease in the prevailing rates of relevant banks
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower for
variables rate bank borrowings, with all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$31,000 (2019:
HK$39,000).

No sensitivity analysis of bank balances of the Group is
presented as the interest income from bank balances is
negligible.

Fair value risk

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the Group’s financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

KIEZRERBBRAF

B 7 B B )

(d)

(e)

# = B

7R 5 18 B A R E LB 2R B 2% B A
R BORITEHRRIBITER -
fidf 11 3R EOR TEORI 9 & A R B
B RN XERAEFERZS
EERNEFBHNENEHR  AKHE
MBREERBTERNEER
A R R - ARE LR R B AR X
EPHreAsZEamk Lk
EREREEMOME-

BRE DM

TSR E AT T E R F R AR
TERNFERRET - Z2
TEBEREREAEENZS S
MTEAZHRBERE2ERNHAER
MR -MEBEEASARADLR
2 A1) 2 |, B B 7 AR B SR 1T 3R1T
FIRA FiF ek TNRES0E S - 35
EEEHANEHRGEEE

FTE B R &T A o

WIBITIERAZE A K £)Z T
P50 fE & 2h M E fb FT & & 8 R
BAE AAEEFANKRTE
s F) #5038 0 #9.31,0007% T
(20194 : 39,000 7T) °

B R ERTT RS8R I B R B BE T At
B 2 5 AN R B IR 1T A R 0 B
BE DT

» P ERE R

ARBEERR AKERBR
RARCHEHEKNANBEENERE
ErsREBENREEREAYF
BRE
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31. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW  31. a8 B KRB KM=
STATEMENTS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: METHELANEEYER:
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings
HEAE RATER
(note 19) (note 20)
(Mt5E19) (Bt 5£20)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
At 1 April 2018 M2018%F4 H1H = 17,533
Changes from financing cash flows: MEReREL S
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRITE RIS B = 3,647
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBITEX = (11,816)
Total changes from financing cash flows MERSREFHETE — (8,169)
At 31 March 2019 7A2019F3HA31H — 9,364
Changes from financing cash flows: BMERSMELS :
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIERPTIS B = 4,960
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITERX (6,893)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilites 8 & & & 728 & % 5 1+ 7 (637) —
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilites A & & & 8.3 5 1 5% (53) —
Total changes from financing cash flows MERREZ LR (690) (1,933)
Other changes: Hib &g :
New leases FriEE 2,413 =
Interest expenses A B 53 —
At 31 March 2020 202063 H31H 1,776 7,431
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 32, A= 8] Bt B AR R &

OF THE COMPANY
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 F#& T FE T
Non-current assets I REBEE
Interests in subsidiaries LN ESNGIPA: £ 33 - -
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TE R IE 393 262
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Ui bft % A 45,596 56,396
Cash and cash equivalents ReLBES % f’f ) 8,786 9,886
54,775 66,544
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals, deposits and other payables JEETER e MEAMES
IE 205 201
205 201
Net current assets and net assets REBEEFERFBEE 54,570 66,343
EQUITY R
Share capital A& 72X 23 6,000 6,000
Reserves B 24 48,570 60,343
Total equity A 54,570 66,343

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19
June 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Ng Sing Mui
REEMN
Director

EF
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33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

Issued ordinary

3. RIFB AR 2R

MEBARFENT

Equity interest owned

by the Company

Name of subsidiary  operation share capital At 31 March Principal activities
AR, ERITEER AXAFRAMNIAS3H
MEAR BB R i B @ BEHRE FEXK
%
2020 2019
20205 20194
Directly held:
BERE:
Winson Group Hong BVI US$H 100 100 Investment holding
Kong Limited
KIREEEE EERUES 18T REER
BIRA A
Indirectly held:
BEFEA
Winson Cleaning Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 100 100 Provisions of environmental
Service Company hygiene, airline catering
Limited support and related services
oK B35 2 AR 5 BB 6,000,000 % 7T RERREE MEERX
AR AR & & 18 A AR 75
Winson Professional Hong Kong HK$8,275,000 100 100 Provisions of pest
Pest Control management services
Company Limited
B 15 B W 22 BB 8,275,000 % 7T REZREERS
BIRAA]
Wealthy Strong Hong Kong HK$6,652,026 100 100 Property holding
Investment Limited
ERREFRAT BB 6,652,026 T MERE

None of the subsidiaries of the Company had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of or any time during the reporting periods.

%o

BMEARANBARNREARLH
NEMEEEA AR REEERE
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. Financial Summary

=

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for B K ER G M B R R R AR 7R
the five years ended 31 March 2020, as extracted from the audited 20172 828H TR WM BR SR A £ E
consolidated financial statements and the prospectus dated 28 February  #; 2202043 A 31 H 1+ F f € E &9 2£ 45 A
2017 issued by the Company is set out below. The summary does not NKEENBEHMEHI WO T - {2 g
form part of the audited financial statements. RSB ZMBERERA—FH o

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 20194 20184F 2017 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TAET TAET THET TAET

Results E
Revenue Wy 25 569,559 537,324 508,106 467,513 449,758
Profit for the year F N m Al 20,702 20,842 21,804 8,679 18,814

Assets and liabilites ZBERE&E

Total assets BEE 207,652 191,686 186,099 195,416 139,366
Total liabilities BEAE 72,779 67,495 72,659 103,796 110,610
Total equity HE m HA R 134,873 124,191 113,440 91,620 28,756
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BEREES

ARTFER20174F2 A 21 B OLF & B & - 0 AR % A 268 10 7 [ i 5T 3 T R A -
FEREB TR LB I PATE S > RS e - R EE - IS B ST A R B IR
B EWHEERESLERG IR

T B 0 W T T S A O A G S RRR R LB e A  B E R
ISE L ES Y IO 37

T E B GO M AL BB 2202043 431 H 1L AR B0 &G BB 3 3R 00 58 2 5% 55 45 & MBS
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